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Financial Highlights #HE#EZ=

Annual result for the year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z-MF=ZA=+-BLEEZ2F¥&

600 — 30 — i 500

450
500 o cm oo
400
400 350
300
300
250
200 200
150
100
100
0 0
Revenue (HK$'M) Profit attributable Net asset value (HK$'M)
Yz (EEBT) to shareholders (HK$'M) LEEFE (EEET)

B s EAGiE R (HEBT)

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 HE-_Z-ME=A=+-BEEZ

PEEE

* Revenue . U3 HK$459.8 million  459.8 BE#T
* Profit before income tax o RATSBIAER HK$10.9 million 10.988ET
* Shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2024 RZB-ME= A=+ - BREER HK$495.5 million 4955 HE®BT
* Basic earnings per share o BREAREF HK1.19 cents 1.19 784
2024 2023

—E-NE —EBD=H

Revenue (HK$'000) Uz (FB ) 459,848 454,764
Operating profit (HK$'000) fEEEF (FBT) 14,477 18,275
Profit before income tax (HK$’000) BREFEBADGER (F87T) 10,862 16,669
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$'000) B SR FE(L % FI (F38 7T) 8,543 14,073
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARRF (GBL) 1.19 2.22
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) @& ERAEIRKRE GE4L) - 0.5
Net asset value (HK$'000) EEFE(TET) 495,493 496,715
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Corporate Information 2 FREH

REGISTERED OFFICE
AMMEE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KYT-1111

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS
HMMEERTEERBE
16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building
33 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BB
IEE335R
E-EERE
16-1818

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEREEE

Mr. Wan Sze Chung (Chairman)
Dr. Luk Wang Kwong

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic

BEBRSE (£E)
BEREEL
BELE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REEES

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Sun Fat, Henry

Mr. Wan Sze Chung

HERLE (ZE)
FEELE
BEREEE

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FMEES

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Shiu Sun

Mr. Wan Sze Chung

BHELLE (TFE)
Bl L
BERLE

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
REZES

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Sun Po, Tony

Mr. Lau Shiu Sun

HERLE (TFE)
WEE L
Bl L

COMPANY SECRETARY
NEWE
Mr. Yu Chi Wah, cpra

B E LA cPA

AUDITOR

3 4]

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

EORKES ST
HESHE
HEMOHN S S EAEE
B8

IR

RFRE221E

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

REAR

Mr. Tse Hon Kit, Kevin
Mr. Yu Chi Wah, cra
HEBEEE

B A cPA




Nl O g

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
REREROBFETRRE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman

KY1-1100, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
EERODBFETIE

Tricor Abacus Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre,

16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

SERAEERA T
&8

ERE165%
ERESRAPO171E

el 0]
N 4 ‘ |l|

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

REHRE

R~

LEGAL ADVISERS ON HONG KONG LAW
EREREZEEREB

Pang, Wan & Choi, Solicitors

Room 1405, 14th Floor

China Insurance Group Building

141 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

REERRT
BE

EEE T 14158
FREBKRE
1411405

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

FEERERIT

— Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
EHRT(FB)ARLAA

— The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited
BB LBESRITARAT

— Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
FOFEIRBITERAT

'IHH':.

’~
(—

BHTERERQA2023/24F F8H




Group Structure FEZR#E

Ll LEL

T

6 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24




b |

Chairman’s Statement FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management, | am
pleased to present to the Company’s shareholders a review of our
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and our
prospects.

[ am pleased to present the Chairman’s Statement for the fiscal year
ended 2024. This year has been marked by significant challenges
and opportunities shaped by the dynamic real estate market in
Hong Kong, broader global economic conditions, and regional
geopolitical conflicts. Our Company, one of the leaders in
supplying ironmongeries and sanitary wares, has navigated these
complexities with resilience and strategic foresight.

PAST PERFORMANCE IN 2023

The year 2023 was marked by a volatile economic landscape, with
rising geopolitical tensions and inflationary pressures affecting
global markets. These challenges, tighter financial conditions, and
higher interest rates posed significant hurdles. Due to these global
economic shifts, the real estate market in Hong Kong experienced
fluctuations. Despite these challenges, our Company demonstrated
robust performance, achieving a marginal revenue increase
compared to the previous year. Our diversified product portfolio
and strong customer relationships drove this success.

Our revenue remained steady, supported by ongoing demand for
high-quality ironmongeries and sanitary wares in both residential
and commercial projects. The Hong Kong government’s easing of
property cooling measures, known locally as the removal of “spicy
measures,” provided a modest boost to the property market. These
policy changes revitalised market activity and positively impacted
our sales, particularly in the year’s second half.

Furthermore, we focused on enhancing operational efficiency
through supply chain optimisation. These efforts enabled us to
maintain competitive pricing and improve delivery times, ensuring
customer satisfaction and loyalty. By streamlining our operations,
we could effectively navigate the challenging economic
environment and position ourselves for continued success.
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Chairman’s Statement FEHREE

FUTURE TRENDS AND OUTLOOK FOR 2024

Looking ahead to 2024, we anticipate a cautiously optimistic
environment for the real estate market in Hong Kong. The market is
expected to benefit from economic recovery, supportive
government policies, favourable interest rates, infrastructure
developments, and favourable investment sentiment. With
projected GDP growth of 2.5% to 3.5%, supported by government
initiatives such as the Land Sale Programme and the promotion of
green and smart technologies, market activity is poised for
stimulation. Additionally, the influx of talent through various
immigration schemes further enhances this outlook. Anticipated
interest rate cuts and easing monetary policies in mainland China
are likely to lower borrowing costs and enhance investment flows,
reinforcing demand in the real estate sector. While challenges such
as geopolitical tensions and global trade uncertainties persist, these
drivers collectively provide a foundation for growth.

Hong Kong has implemented several talent admission schemes to
attract high-quality professionals and researchers. Notable among
these are the Top Talent Pass Scheme, Technology Talent
Admission Scheme, Quality Migrant Admission Scheme, General
Employment Policy, Immigration Arrangements for Non-local
Graduates, and the Admission Scheme for the Second Generation
of Chinese Hong Kong Permanent Residents. On 7 May 2024, the
Secretary for Labour & Welfare, Chris Sun, highlighted the
substantial progress in attracting talent through these schemes.
Over the past 18 months, approximately 120,000 individuals have
arrived in Hong Kong under these programmes. These Enhanced
Talent Schemes have significantly contributed to Hong Kong's
vibrant talent pool and economic growth, driving increased
demand in the real estate market, particularly for luxury and
premium properties. They have also reinforced Hong Kong's status
as an international financial hub, further supporting the real estate
market. The financial industry remains a major source of demand
for premium office spaces.

We expect the removal of property cooling measures to continue
stimulating the real estate market, driving demand for our products.
The anticipated increase in construction activity presents
opportunities for growth in both new projects and the renovation
sector. We plan to capitalise on these opportunities by expanding
our product range and enhancing our service offerings to meet
evolving customer needs.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

ARBER -_F-_NFHR

RE-Z_NF  BMEAETBRHETSRER
SEEYLE - BT SBZIENEESE BITXE
BR - BEAME ERRBERREMNNRERHE -
EEHT R EEACEER TSRS ERN X
T BAUREHEEE  BEREELESER
25%&E3.5% ¢ o BBZIEBRFTESIENALT
E-FEBZAS FEHPEAMBEREBERE
BNEBBE  THEEREERAN  RRER
By E—SIRBEMETENER - BEMBICEE
REZNEZHRESTHREESHEBXARE > EZ
ERHREHPREREE TER o

BBERZEAT ARE LRSI EEEXAL
RIFRAE - AHEFSEIZNESWAST BITHE
g BIBRAT A BFATARHE - —KHt
HER - FAMBEARE EEREZHERBAHR
HMEEBKAMERF NS R-ZT-NFH
AtH BIREINRAREIRES  BBZE
EERSIATTENSGELER - BXR18EAR » &
£120,000 B AL EREZSTEIRE - ZFRLA
T BAERRREINATENEEREREHE
REH HBHEHETS(LARIERSENHE)
VEREH - FRE T BBERBER SR PO
i E—PXBRHBEDTS - TRMERAREERD
ZRENEEFTRRIR -

HMESNHSREYEERERSEERNNE BETS
UHBHEMERNTR - B REFHENED
HEERBHASRHEREE  RMNEEBEX
ERSENIMNARBASUEEZSHE  BEF
BRELNEFER -




s )

However, the Hong Kong real estate market faces several key risks
and challenges, including the potential for interest rate hikes,
concerns over economic conditions in Mainland China, ongoing
geopolitical tensions, affordability issues for residents, possible
regulatory changes or new policies, reshoring policies, and the
looming threat of a broader economic downturn. Navigating these
headwinds while maintaining the market’s attractiveness to high-
net-worth individuals and investors, alongside the influx of talent
drawn by the enhanced talent schemes, will be crucial for
sustaining the resilience of Hong Kong's real estate sector in the
year ahead.

Our strategic priorities for 2024 include strengthening our market
presence through targeted marketing campaigns and partnerships
with key industry players. While optimistic about the future, we
remain vigilant about potential risks, including economic
uncertainties and market volatility. Our proactive risk management
approach involves continuously monitoring market conditions,
maintaining a flexible supply chain, and ensuring financial
prudence.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our staff members for their unwavering contribution
and devotion. Your hard work and commitment have been
instrumental in our success. | would also like to convey my
heartfelt appreciation to our consumers and business associates for
their continued trust and support. Your loyalty and partnership are
the cornerstones of our sustained growth and achievements.
Together, we will continue to navigate the ever-evolving market
landscape and drive sustainable success in 2024 and beyond.

Thank you for your continued trust and confidence in our
Company.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

24 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E &I 85 4

BUSINESS REVIEW E 3 3E1

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its AABWEBXZHEAREEZR -EWBELTIETER
subsidiaries are principally engaged in importing, wholesale, Z&BRPEARAME(HEHRBED - #H3-
retailing and installing architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, ZE&ERZERERE - #4  FERBREM - UK
kitchen collections and furniture and providing interior design REZERRFRYE - BEREHNERE -

services, project and contract management in Hong Kong and the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s #A&EEWXBEEREAVBEERXRRIEEHAE
performance using financial key performance indicators during the ~BRAFERRNDHT  EHNEEBIWEDN o
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In  tt5h » REBREBERERBERWH BELAE
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and EHEHEES - &F  HEFIRHAEEEEATEER
implementation and an account of the Group’s key relationships BEAEBERINEMATHWEZBARWNZE Bl
with its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a #R=-ZZ=Z= "“NFFHRIRE L EREARRE
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success & °

depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of the Annual Report 2023/24.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions in  RAABRBFEBHERS BRI TES LHHRAI
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on (I LR 1) Bi#& C1 85I 2 <F BRI 2 FHFHN =
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are  Z2== /Z“WFFREFEEARER  BRLHHAK
provided in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report  $C1 Z<F B X D255 BEZE=FT-MNF=A
2023/24. Except the code provision D.2.5 of Appendix C1 of the Z=+—BILFE AXARBFLHRE - HB Q=5
Listing Rules, during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company  #l(¥$622%) - B5RPEKRGIURBEFESDRE
has complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules, the  HR5E -

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Securities and

Futures Ordinance and the Cayman Islands Companies Act.

Hong Kong’s economy, known for its dynamism and minimally &EB&QBELGEHIMGED FEBEMBE S - —EUR
interventionist policies, has always been open and responsive to  &¥ 2 IREE B LRISEARFAELHEED - R=ZE==
global economic shifts. In 2023, escalating geopolitical tensions F - TELBEB(LERLHE - X6 (XE ) RBM
among major economies, particularly China, the United States (the B2 ([BEE ) 2 EM A BUARRRE TE AR -
“U.S.”), and the European Union (the “E.U.”), significantly BREXETRKERRE EREENKBEERETEH
influenced this economic landscape. Given that Hong Kong’'s MW&EBEXBEETAD  ZEEREZRALTEE
economic growth is closely tied to China’s economic performance, &BNES - £HKEL REBBEBCAN - R=F

these tensions have profoundly impacted Hong Kong’s trade, Z=Z=%  AEKEZEHHRERFERIERIER
business operations, and strategic geopolitical standing. In 2023, REERE(BERNEELEDEAREFNIERESR

China’s economy demonstrated resilience and growth despite  5.2%°
challenges, with a Gross Domestic Product (the “GDP”) growth
rate of 5.2% over the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &= 4

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The reshoring initiatives undertaken by Western nations, aimed at
reducing dependency on China, have had a tangible impact on
Hong Kong’s economic activities. The United States has been
leading this movement, actively advocating for the realignment of
manufacturing and supply chains to lessen reliance on Chinese
production capabilities. This strategic shift has not only affected
trade volumes but also investor sentiment. Foreign investors have
become increasingly cautious due to the unpredictable nature of
the relations between China and the E.U./U.S. This uncertainty has
eroded confidence, leading to a reticence in investment,
particularly in sectors where Hong Kong has traditionally excelled.

The real estate market in Hong Kong, traditionally a barometer of
economic health and investor confidence, has been significantly
impacted by the prevailing geopolitical conflicts; the 2023/24
period saw a marked decrease in investment activity and capital
inflows, particularly within the commercial and high-end
residential property segments. Central banks of advanced
economies raised interest rates sharply to curb inflation, thereby
tightening global financial conditions and dampening import
demand for goods. Consequently, Hong Kong's total goods exports
decreased notably by 10.3% last year.

The geopolitical standoffs have fueled uncertainty, weakening the
economic outlook and resulting in subdued demand from
individual purchasers and corporate entities. Concerns over
potential shifts in policy and regulatory frameworks, coupled with
fluctuations in currency and exchange rates, have compounded
these challenges, diminishing the market’s appeal to investors
during this tumultuous period.

In contrast, the market for private domestic units in Hong Kong
presented a more nuanced picture in 2023. The first half of the
year maintained a semblance of stability in terms of demand and
pricing. However, the latter half witnessed moderation, reflecting
the evolving economic backdrop and market conditions. An
increase in new housing supply, alongside a softening of investor
activity, played a significant role in shaping the market dynamics
throughout the year. This mixed performance underscores the
complex interplay between local market forces and the broader
geopolitical climate, which continues to shape Hong Kong's
economic trajectory. Despite these challenges, Hong Kong's
economy has demonstrated resilience and adaptability. The
territory continues to leverage its strengths and strategic position to
navigate these complex geopolitical dynamics; the Hong Kong
economy ended the year positively, with the real Gross Domestic

if; Product growing by 3.2%.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

The environment of uncertainty fostered by these geopolitical
dynamics has led to cautious investment decisions. Despite a
modest recovery in early 2023, the secondary property market for
domestic prices experienced a downturn. The upward momentum
lost steam amidst the relatively high interest rate environment,
tightened financial conditions, an uncertain external economic
outlook, subdued local demand, and cautious investor and
developer sentiment. Economic uncertainties, both globally and
locally, have significantly affected investors and potential home
buyers.

According to the Rating and Valuation Department of the Hong
Kong SAR Government, prices in the last quarter of 2023 saw a
decline of 7.2% compared to the same period in the previous year.
The transaction volume of secondary private domestic units
decreased by 4% to 43,002 units, down from 45,050 units in 2022.
Furthermore, the number of private domestic completions in 2023
stood at 13,852 units, marking a 35% reduction from 2022. These
figures underscore the challenges faced by the real estate market in
Hong Kong and the need for strategic planning and execution to
navigate through these turbulent times.

In the fiscal year of 2023, the Land Sale Revenue amounted to
HKD12.3 billion, a figure that significantly fell short of the targeted
HKD85 billion. This shortfall can be attributed to a confluence of
factors, including economic uncertainties, market sentiment,
government policies, developers’ cautious attitude towards the
market, and external geopolitical factors. These elements have
collectively contributed to a reticent investment climate and lower-
than-expected land sale revenues.

In an effort to stabilise the real estate market, the Hong Kong
Government cancelled all Special Stamp Duty (the “SSD”), Buyer’s
Stamp Duty (the “BSD”), and New Residential Stamp Duty (the
“NRSD”) for residential property transactions starting from 28
February 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &= 4

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The economic landscape of Hong Kong in 2023 was significantly
shaped by ongoing geopolitical tensions, particularly those
involving its major trading partners, China and the United States.
The global trend towards reshoring and the strategic shift to reduce
reliance on China for manufacturing, especially in the electric
vehicle sector, has pronouncedly affected Hong Kong’s economic
performance.

Despite these challenging economic and market conditions in
Hong Kong and a 61% decline in project sales during the financial
year ended on 31 March 2024, we managed to achieve marginal
growth in revenue. There were notable improvements:

1. Furniture & Kitchen: Sales in this category saw a marginal
increase.

2. Sanitary Wares: Sales of sanitary wares rose by 27.5%.
3. China Sales: Sales in China increased significantly by 65%.

4. Design Section: Remarkably, the Design section experienced
a 4.7-fold growth.

These positive trends indicate resilience and strategic adjustments
in response to market challenges.

Our revenue and, consequently, the gross profit experienced a
modest increase compared to the 2022/23 fiscal year. This
achievement is noteworthy, particularly considering that the
transaction volume in the secondary property market was
approximately 4% lower than the previous year.

However, it is important to note that our profit after income tax
decreased by 39.3% due to increased operating expenses,
including shop relocation costs, asset depreciation, and loss related
to property valuation. This decline underscores the complex and
challenging business environment we operate in.

Despite these challenges, our Group remains steadfast in our
commitment to leverage our extensive experience and work
diligently to maintain and strengthen our relationships in Hong
Kong. We will continue collaborating with reputable property
developers to seize future opportunities. Our strategic focus
remains on delivering sustainable growth and value for our
stakeholders. We are confident in navigating these challenges and

B look forward to a prosperous future.
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BhRE BEES f
=T
REVENUE REVIEW W 25 [B1 R
Revenue by business segment RERDBE D 2 W
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total turnover was BE-Z-NF=ZA=+—HLFE FAEELE
HK$459.8 million, representing an increase of 1.1% as compared  ¥%#459.8 BEBT » BREFEM1.1% o
with the previous year.
Revenue from external customers As a percentage of sales
HHNRF R EHEERED
31 March 31 March
=A=t-8 =A=t-8
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023
—E-mE b S -] b1 -3 —RCZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TER TR
Architectural builders’ BERE  HARE
hardware, bathroom BEf
collections and others 349,943 314,574 11.2 76.1 69.2
Kitchen collection and furniture BIE3E#E R 5 109,905 140,190 (21.6) 23.9 30.8
459,848 454,764 1.1 100.0 100.0
Profitability by business segment REKIBE D 2 BFIEED
Reportable segment gross profit Gross profit margin
TEHKzDBER Eilk S
2024 2023 Change 2024 2023
—E-mE b S 25 b1 -2 —RCZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TER TR
Architectural builders’ BERE  HARE
hardware, bathroom REAM
collections and others 138,705 109,720 26.4 39.6 34.9
Kitchen collection and furniture & E % &R & 40,505 70,886 (42.9) 36.9 50.6
179,210 180,606 (0.8) 39.0 39.7
<
th 385 B IR R A 72023247 F 15
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REVENUE REVIEW (cONT'D)

Revenue by business segment (cont'd)

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment increased by 11.2% to HK$349.9
million (2023: HK$314.6 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as Blue Coast,
KT Marina, Belgravia Place, OnMantin.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
decreased by 21.6% to HK$109.9 million (2023: HK$140.2
million) as compared to the previous year. During the year, we
supplied for projects such as IN ONE ABOVE.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$179.2
million (2023: HK$180.6 million), representing an decrease of
0.8% from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin
slightly decreased to 39.0% from 39.7%.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$14.5 million (2023: HK$18.3
million), representing an decrease of 20.8% from the prior year.
The amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs
increased slightly to HK$161.7 million (2023: HK$161.7 million)
which reflected our efforts in controlling selling expenses despite
resumption in selling activities and cost control in staffing and
distribution.

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

RERE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to operate its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.2 (2023: 1.9) and 1.2 (2023: 1.2),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with
maturity over three months approximated HK$87.7 million as at 31
March 2024 (2023: HK$146.7 million).

Inventories increased to HK$169.7 million (2023: HK$144.9
million). The current trade, retention and other receivables
increased to HK$115.1 million (2023: HK$94.3 million), while the
trade and other payables decreased to HK$31.0 million (2023:
HK$43.3 million).

As at 31 March 2024, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is 2.0% (2023: net cash position). The interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group decreased to HK$58.6 million
(2023: HK$64.0 million) as at 31 March 2024.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2024, performance bonds of approximately HK$7.9 million
(2023: HK$23.3 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

On 9 January 2023, the Company completed a rights issue and
issued 118,238,942 rights shares, on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every four (4) then existing shares, at a price of HK$0.192
per rights share (the “2023 Rights Issue”). Upon completion of the
2023 Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds of
approximately HK$21.4 million (the “Net Proceeds”). The
Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i)
approximately HK$11.7 million for financing the estimated
renovation costs and related expenses for setting up a new
showroom and warehouse in connection with the Group’s kitchen
collection and furniture business; (ii) approximately HK$7.7
million for repayment of bank loans; and (iii) approximately
HK$2.0 million as general working capital of the Group.

The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use
of the Net Proceeds raised from the 2023 Rights Issue:

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as

R~

HRAERERR

RIZBZ=F—-ANA  ARFA=RERITIZEM4)
RESRERDVER —(ORERROZEEUSR
R0 0.192 B T 2 B 817 118,238,942 IR i A%
BHE(ZZ==F#RKR]) - TR =_=FHRKR%E -
AATCWEBIR S FIEREFEN21 4588 T
BREFRHE]D - AR BB HAEEFEARUTH
B NN /EEBTAREBEAEERERER
BEREBNHIRINERERNMETTEH R AR IEE
EREXERES (W77 BBETARNERRT
B RGNK208EBTAEAEEN —REE
=

TREFIEHE A =S = = F R FSIUEFEY
aH

Actual use of

disclosed in the  Net Proceeds up to Unutilised
prospectus dated 31 March 2024 as  Net Proceeds as at Intended use and
14 December 2022  originally intended 31 March 2024  expected timeline
AR BREEE
—B-CF ik 3-dE gz
+=A+mAE —RCoRE —EomE
ZERFAHEE ZA=+-8H =ZA=t-H
ZFEE HIFEHE HABAZz BRERER
FERTERR FECERAR FREREFE FEAERX
Financing the estimated renovation HK$11.7 million HK$11.7 million Nil  To be used as originally
costs and related expenses for intended during the
setting up a new showroom and first half of 2023 and
warehouse in connection with the through 2024
Group’s kitchen collection and
furniture business
BEAREERERER N7EBERT N7EEER B ROBDZFL¥F
BREENHRIER ERCNFHA
BRI AR BEHTEREER
HEZRAXREHRES
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE (coNnT'D)

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as

Actual use of

HRFFEBFERZ @

disclosed in the  Net Proceeds up to Unutilised
prospectus dated 31 March 2024 as  Net Proceeds as at Intended use and
14 December 2022  originally intended 31 March 2024  expected timeline
A% RERE
St -3 RARER Bz
+=A+mA “E-ME “E-ME
ZERRKRE =A=+-A =A=+-A
B RIE BTSRRI HARBAz REBER
FEEERRZ FHEZERAR FrSFERE HBEHREXR
Repayment of bank loans HK$7.7 million HK$7.7 million Nil  To be used as originally
intended from January
2023 to March 2024
BERITER 77EBRT 77EBER 2 R-E-=%-A
EZECMFEZA
RIERERRER
General working capital of the HK$2.0 million HK$2.0 million Nil  To be used as originally
Group intended from January
2023 to March 2024
FEEN-REEES 208BET 20B8ET # R-B-=%-8
EZENFE=AR
RIERERARER
FUTURE PROSPECTS RARRE

Looking ahead, the global landscape is rife with uncertainty.
Geopolitical risks are undermining economic activity and causing
disruptions in global supply chains. Elections worldwide could
introduce new political risks and volatility. Domestically, China is
grappling with significant challenges, from a sluggish real estate
market to weak consumer sentiment. Stimulating consumption is a
crucial yet formidable task. The future economic trajectory of Hong
Kong is intricately tied to China’s effectiveness in addressing its
internal economic hurdles. The interplay between Hong Kong’s
economic policies and China’s broader macroeconomic climate is
of utmost importance. The average prediction among five firms,
UBS, Citi, JP Morgan, Goldman Sachs and Morgan Stanley, pointed
to a 4.6% increase in real GDP this year, down from 5.2%
expected for 2023.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

However, China faces significant economic challenges for 2024,
including high corporate and local government debt levels that
threaten financial stability and growth. The real estate market has
entered deflation, leading to adjustments in property investment
and construction. Although consumer spending has rebounded,
domestic demand remains weak due to structural issues and
demographic changes. Slowed industrial production growth is
affecting the manufacturing and export sectors. In response,
authorities focus on reducing financial risks by tightening
regulations and oversight in the banking and shadow banking
sectors. These factors collectively shape China’s economic outlook
for 2024.

The impact of reshoring initiatives on manufacturing and supply
chains has been profound, significantly affecting trade volumes
and investor confidence. The uncertainties surrounding China-E.U./
U.S. relations have further complicated the situation, leading to a
more cautious approach from foreign investors. This climate of
uncertainty has not only affected direct investments but also
rippled through Hong Kong’s broader economic activities,
including its pivotal real estate sector. The real estate market,
particularly commercial and luxury residential properties, may
witness a decline in foreign investment.

In the 2024/25 financial budget, the Land Sale Programme will
encompass eight residential sites (capable of providing
approximately 5,690 flats), two commercial sites (around 120,000
sq m of gross floor area), and one other site. The estimated private
housing land supply for 2024/25 can yield about 15,000 flats,
surpassing the annual target of 13,200 flats by approximately 15%.
Other sources of supply include the MTR Corporation Limited (the
“MTRCL"), which plans to tender its residential development
project at Tung Chung East Station Package 1, offering around
1,200 flats. The Urban Renewal Authority (the “URA”) will
contribute by advancing three projects, providing approximately
2,860 flats. Private development and redevelopment projects are
estimated to supply around 5,400 flats in 2024/25. The potential
supply of first-hand private residential units for the next three to
four years is projected to be around 109,000.

R~
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (CONT'D)

Nevertheless, the outlook for the Hong Kong private domestic unit
market in 2024 is expected to be challenging, with declining
demand, downward pressure on prices, reduced investment
activity, concerns over oversupply, and affordability challenges.
The weaker economic growth, cautious developers, and decreased
consumer confidence will likely impact overall residential property
demand, particularly for higher-end and investment-driven
properties. This, combined with the ongoing new housing supply,
will put downward pressure on prices and decrease investment
activity. Therefore, the government’s 2024 budget has indicated
that it might consider a rate cut this year. These cuts could boost
financial market sentiment and benefit retail and office leasing
momentum.

Given Hong Kong’s economic outlook in 2023 and 2024, the
government’s land sale revenue is projected to decline in 2024
compared to 2023; the government’s targeted revenue from land
premiums has seen a significant decrease of 61% year-on-year,
plummeting from HK$85 billion to HK$33 billion. This is attributed
to a weakening real estate market, reduced economic growth and
investment, cautious developer and investor sentiment, and
potential policy adjustments. The reduced investor confidence and
cautious market sentiment have significantly affected the
disappointing land sale revenue figures. The diminished capital
inflows and subdued demand within the commercial and high-end
residential property segments highlight the broader economic
challenges faced by Hong Kong amidst these geopolitical tensions.
Consequently, the revenue generated from land sales has suffered,
reflecting the broader hesitancy in the investment climate during
this period of economic volatility.

In summary, these geopolitical tensions and conflicts could pose
significant challenges to Hong Kong’s real estate market. However,
the exact impact will depend on how these situations evolve and
how effectively Hong Kong can navigate these challenges. It's a
complex issue with many moving parts, and the situation continues
to evolve. The Hong Kong government will need to implement
robust policy measures and economic diversification strategies to
mitigate these challenges and restore the city’s growth trajectory in
the medium to long term.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

In his budget speech on 28 February 2024, Financial Secretary
Paul Chan unveiled several key initiatives to diversify Hong Kong’s
industries and bolster its economic resilience. These initiatives
include increased funding for the Innovation and Technology Fund
(the “ITF”) to support Research & Development (the “R&D”) in
emerging technologies, continued investment in smart city
infrastructure, and the expansion of Cyberport for tech
entrepreneurs. The government is also championing green
technologies and sustainability through green bonds, enhancing
support for creative industries, and launching a tourism recovery
package. Additional measures encompass strengthening the fintech
sector, expanding the Wealth Management Connect Scheme,
investing in biomedical research and healthcare innovation,
promoting STEM education, attracting international talent, and
developing smart logistics systems to enhance trade efficiency.
These initiatives underscore the government’s commitment to
fostering innovation, enhancing competitiveness, and reducing
reliance on traditional economic sectors. Technology and
innovation are integral to Hong Kong's economic strategy, fostering
new industries, creating jobs, and maintaining the city’s
competitive edge on the global stage. The sustained focus on these
areas is expected to significantly influence the city’s economic
resilience and growth.

However, geopolitical tensions, sanctions between China and the
Western world, and reshoring policies pose significant challenges
to Hong Kong’s economic diversification initiatives by restricting
access to critical technologies, talent, and international markets.
These factors could impede advancements in R&D, smart city
infrastructure, and green technologies, affect the growth of creative
industries and tourism, complicate financial services initiatives like
fintech development and cross-border investment, and disrupt
supply chains essential for smart logistics. The creative industries,
healthcare and life sciences, and education sectors could face
challenges due to limited international partnerships, access to
advanced technologies, and talent. These vulnerabilities
underscore the broad impact of geopolitical dynamics on Hong
Kong’s diverse economic landscape. Consequently, these
geopolitical dynamics could escalate costs, limit international
collaborations, and dampen investor sentiment, necessitating Hong
Kong to adopt flexible and adaptive strategies to maintain its
competitive edge and achieve its long-term economic goals,
thereby ensuring economic stability in the face of ongoing global
changes.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

The intensifying rivalry between the U.S. and China and various
regional conflicts have presented considerable economic
challenges for Hong Kong. These developments have highlighted
the city’s susceptibility to global geopolitical shifts. Looking ahead,
a key priority for Hong Kong will be to navigate these complexities
to maintain its competitive edge and ensure economic stability in
the face of ongoing global changes. Technology and innovation
are integral to Hong Kong'’s economic strategy. They foster new
industries, create jobs, and maintain the city’s edge as a
competitive global city. The continued focus on these areas is
expected to substantially affect the city’s economic resilience and
growth.

The government forecasts GDP growth for 2024/25 and a real
economic growth rate of 2.5 to 3.5 per cent per annum, indicating
that the Hong Kong economy will grow by an average of 3.2 per
cent a year in real terms from 2025 to 2028. The underlying
inflation rate is forecast to average 2.5 per cent a year over this
period. This growth is predicated on the assumption that
geopolitical tensions will not worsen significantly, advanced
economies will start cutting interest rates around mid-year, and the
global economy will register similar growth as in 2024.

Geopolitical uncertainties, a relatively high-interest environment,
and reshoring policies have cast a shadow over investor and
potential home buyer confidence. This has led to decreased
investment in new construction projects and reduced sale
transactions in the private domestic unit market, particularly in the
high-end luxury flat market. As a result, many have adopted a wait-
and-see attitude, which can, in turn, decrease demand for builders’
ware.

The business environment for our builders” ware in Hong Kong is
influenced by a mix of opportunities and challenges stemming
from government initiatives and geopolitical dynamics. We
anticipate that these factors will negatively impact our turnover
and, consequently, our gross profit margin, especially for high-end
products for the luxury real estate market in the coming year.

In response to these challenges, we plan to focus more on project
sales by strengthening relationships with key customers, including
construction firms and developers. We aim to achieve this through
personalised service and tailored solutions.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Furthermore, we intend to adapt to changing market conditions
and government initiatives by embracing innovation and
sustainability. Aligning with the government’s green technologies
initiatives, we will focus more on sustainable and eco-friendly
building materials. We will promote products that improve energy
efficiency, reduce carbon footprint, and comply with green
building standards. This strategic shift not only aligns with global
sustainability trends but also positions us to serve our customers
better and navigate the complexities of the current economic
landscape.

In conclusion, the economic outlook for Hong Kong in 2024 is
cautiously optimistic, with expectations of growth. After a period of
contraction, real GDP is forecasted to expand by 2.5% to 3.5%,
supported by a rebound in domestic demand and improvements in
the labour market. However, the external environment remains
complex, with geopolitical tensions and global trade uncertainties
posing potential challenges. Despite these headwinds, the gradual
recovery of the Chinese economy and expected rate cuts may
improve investment activity and property market sentiment. While
cautiousness is warranted due to the dynamic global economic
landscape, the various supportive measures and the local
economy’s resilience provide a basis for a positive outlook.

Ongoing urban development and housing projects in Hong Kong
will support demand for our products. Still, they will be tempered
by economic and operational challenges due to broader economic
uncertainties and potential fluctuations in real estate activity. We
hope that our group turnover for 2024/25 will remain Stable &
Steady.

The Group has demonstrated resilience and adaptability in the face
of the challenges brought about by the pandemic, evolving to
sustain growth. We recognise the impact of external factors on our
operations and performance. These include geopolitical tensions,
supply chain disruptions, and currency rate fluctuations. As such,
we will continue monitoring these factors and adjusting our
strategies closely.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 170 to 172.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 116 to 117

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not declare and paid an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 September 2023 (six months ended 30
September 2022: nil).

The Board do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2024 (year ended 31 March 2023: HK$0.5
cent per share, totalling HK$3,594,000).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) will be held on 6
September 2024.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 3 September 2024 to 6 September
2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the right to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 2 September 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2024,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$60,811,000 (2023: HK$63,253,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2024 are
set out in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$28,160 (2023: HK$80,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 67, is the Chairman of the Board. He
is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 73, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 65, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 56, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 44, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty-one subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree
of Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 75, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 67, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 40 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 49, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong are Independent Non-executive Directors
and were appointed for a fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes during
the year ended 31 March 2024. As at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2024, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests

* e T\"
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(EERFHZRBERFIEXVER) 2B M5 - HERS
RESFT  BHEREIFSFRBERGIEXVHEIRS
PMEHNEARAQRAREBHARZERQ T (B
R 2R RER » RIREE F RS EHIE 352
BRARBDEFE2RTMACE2EEZRKRE
BELTRAMBCGHE LT RTAESETES
R 22ESH ((2ESH ) BTHEARD T RE
X2 EHERABNT :

ExfEs

Number of ordinary
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EERENEBERYAE
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director 2 interests interests (share options) Total  capital issued
i HE AT
PTETA BRAz
BARER DERER (BBRRE) Foy BolE
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) HEASLE (1) - 46,496,617 - 46,496,617 6.47%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) AEE LA (R 2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) B KA (FFEE3) - 54,574,427 - 54,574,427 7.59%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) HBAE A (M 2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun BBk E - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic EEELE - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BEHEEE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong fErREEL - - - - -
Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way 31 : %% 72 5 849 % 2% B Fast Way Management Limited
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the B HEEAEREREAZSHEA ©
beneficiaries.
Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group BM3E2 @ ZEARQRMRDERH Universal Star Group Limited 3
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family BoBHELE HEGLERKEIRERELS
are the beneficiaries. HA o
Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times  ff33 : %% 7 2 & IR 1 # # B New Happy Times Limited 3

Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

B-HHELECEBREARKIERZHEA » HH
BRERRLREAESRES
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2024, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BERE BARE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE

As at 31 March 2024, the following persons (not being Directors or RA=ZZZMF=ZA=+—H ' U TFAT (AEFESEH
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or AR BHESTHAE) RAD R R REER G+
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company ~ BUTRIEFE S R AERAIE 336 R AFE 2B LM
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of ~ FrEcfEZEERKE

the SFO:
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEQATRGOREBRODZEFR
Percentage of
Personal Family Corporate share capital
interest interest interest Total issued
28T
Name of shareholder REZRE 1HH EARER RIRER AT ER wst BAEDE
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited - - 91,976,507 91,976,507 12.80%
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note 1) LIM Mee Hwa 22+ (FftzE 1) 7,200,000 4,320,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note 1) YEO Seng Chong 5£4E (FifEE 1) 4,320,000 7,200,000 33,632,000 45,152,000 6.28%
Universal Star Group Limited  Universal Star Group Limited
(Note 2) (HftzE2) 135,378,110 - - 135,378,110 18.83%
New Happy Times Limited New Happy Times Limited
(Note 3) (MiEE3) 54,574,427 - - 54,574,427 7.59%
Fast Way Management Fast Way Management
Limited (Note 4) Limited (B 4) 46,496,617 - - 46,496,617 6.47%

Note 1: Ms. Lim owns 7,200,000 Shares directly in her own name and her husband P& 1 :

Mr. Yeo owns 4,320,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd (“YCMPL”) and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 45,152,000. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to
be beneficially held.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group a2 :

Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times FMiEE3

Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

Note 4: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way  K{&t4:

Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

LmZTUEBSEHFHEEREE 7,200,000 8B 15 &
HEXXYeo R EUHB 5 BHREHE 4,320,000 R ©
Lim#Z + KYeost £ & # # B Yeoman Capital
Management Pte Ltd ([YCMPLJ) #9 2 2B Bg #& » [H 1th ¥
YCMPLEE &I - ALImZEtRYeo REZBEEN
AATRBLE (HEERER BETRBREZRRRE
ZIRFIMN A TIMHER) 545,152,000 8% c BIEFFRBE
& LimZERYeo AER BB BRIERERZERR
EEZSEENERDPEEER -

ZEAR QTR FER B Universal Star Group Limited 3
BoWHELAE HERAERBREZRKERERST

@A e

ZE AR D E R % B New Happy Times Limited
B-HHBELECRBRAIKERERZHEA - HK
BARARAREAEBEL o

ZE AN TR 19 R 5% B Fast Way Management Limited
BE SR EEREBRBRERA

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of FREXFEESN  R=F=-ME=/A=+—H &2
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company) R THEFEMEZRR (KQATESRIN) KA
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying 2 TR {3 S AHEE B AD F #H R 15 55 R B R B
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required 336 EfF B2 R MACE 2 ERIKA

to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2024.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other material connected transaction during the year
to be disclosed.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 9), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 11 to 25), “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” (pages 62 to 67), “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (pages 74 to 107) and “Financial Risk
Management” (pages 139 to 146). The above discussions form part
of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 41 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 90 to 99 and form part of this Directors’ Report.

BEXS
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TERBRIEERE
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, our workforce was recorded at 134
employees (2023: 141). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$67,712,000 (2023:
HK$69,103,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’ emoluments during the year are set
out on page 158. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2024, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:

Pt

FEBUR

MRIEBE_NFE=A=1+—H > BZMNEIAZESB134
B(ZEZ=ZF1418) HBEIRKN(BEEEH
) &67,712,000/8 T (ZF Z =% : 69,103,000 /&
7o) o KMIRMARF D2 HWEBEURMN BER
HEREB AT ©

REBESEEERE R AEERBEAZRE
EHERAFHRE FHNEZSSCTRIBABEE
EEZAEEHNTESREREBRASZHFHBE
REFMEE - FRNESHMFBENE 158H - &K
B30 AT S TRERR RS & o

SREEANEHH
BEZZ-_NE=ZA=1+-HLEE INFFEH
EEABZHFMMOT :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands FEa R A
HK$0-HK$1,000,000 08T E 1,000,000 78 7T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases RIAEE

The largest supplier RAHIER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARMEREG
Revenue W zs

The largest customer BRAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate ARE PR

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.

FTEHEBREF

RAFER AEEXTRHEFREFTGREBRE
KREEREBEDLLWT ¢

26%
58%

9%
28%

EE RECEEBMBATIIBESTHANERLRR
AIEBITIRAN5% S £ 2 EMARER » MR £ AT iR
BrrEHERREFhHEEES
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 84 to 90.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 198.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 11 to 25 and pages 74 to
107 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the

Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BHRE RARE ,
F e
Corporate Governance Report &£XE8HE

O g

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2024, except for the
following:

Under the code provision D.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.

BFhEE
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules sets
a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the “SFQ”),
have been requested to comply with provisions no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 32 in Directors’ Report. According
to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Formal
letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors setting out
all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 29 to 32.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted an
annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his
independence as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule
3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that
all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. Subject to
approval of the Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent legal, financial or other
professional advices from advisors independent to those advising
the Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances
to enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms on an annual basis.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation
of such mechanisms and considered that the above mechanisms
are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
provided to the Board.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 7 regular
Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the
Listing Rules and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 68.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages
108 to 115).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and are
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various
forms of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 68.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (cONT'D)

(i)  Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

() Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(@) Providing leadership for the management;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

(d)  Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

() Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

(g0 Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and risk management

systems as well as disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h)  Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Investment Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

() To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

(m) To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

(n)  To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(0) To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

(p) To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

(@) To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance (including the board diversity
policy, mechanism to ensure independent views of the Board
and shareholders communication policy) and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)
Audit Committee (cont'd)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2023, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 on 24 June 2024,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the board
diversity policy, mechanisms to ensure independent views of the
Board and shareholders communication policy) and practices,
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewed and monitored
the Company’s code of conduct and compliance manual, reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 68.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNTD) EEEBTHEEE W
Audit Committee (cont'd) EREEE (B)
Auditors’ Remuneration BB £
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the following external auditors’ ®BEZE=-ZT-WNF=ZB=+—-HLFE AQFEL
remuneration has been incurred by the Company: LU MR SR BN &

HK$'000

FiET

External auditors SNEERZ BLAT
— Audit services — BIZRE 1,760
— Non-audit services — EBIRTE 216
Total wEt 1,976

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the fees to external auditors, BEZZ-MHF=A=+—HIEFE BPEEE
amounting to HK$1,760,000 were primarily for audit services and B3 2 &M% 1,760,000 87T - EEH R EZR

those for non-audit services amounted to HK$216,000, 10.9% of #: MkFEZRBE 2 EAH216,0008 T - HERER
the total fees. The non-audit services provided by the auditors was 2 10.9% ° & #EH TR 2 B RBERHBE SRR
tax compliance services. e

Nomination Committee REZEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It REZEER-T-—-F=A-+EtAKZ  BA
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors HMEBUFHTEER -—EHTESAR - ®F

and one Executive Director. They are: BUTAL:
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELE
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman) (BUFHITESE - T/E)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director) RS E (HITESE)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director) BEBBALE (BUHHTESE)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly REZESCHHABESRE  WRAD AT -
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the reappointment of Directors at the 2024 annual general meeting
having considered them having the required character, integrity,
independence (as appropriate to Independent Non-executive
Directors), professional knowledge and experience to fulfil their
role and to contribute to the Group, and discussed the succession
planning for the Company’s Board and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee

B meetings during the year is set out on page 68.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 29 to 32.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the
Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate
and make recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board.

Since the Board was comprised with the single gender Directors as
at the date of this report, the Board aims to nominate and appoint
at least one female candidate to be our Board member no later
than 31 December 2024. In order to increase gender diversity in
the Board in the upcoming years, the Company will also
proactively provide training to our senior managements and will
take into account the factor of gender diversity when recruiting
suitable candidates for our senior management in the future.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)
Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d)  To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

(e) To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(f)  To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(h)  To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and/or the chief executive as appropriate). The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.
The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on page 58. Details of remuneration payable to the senior
management, by band, are set out on page 39.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 68.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on 12 June 2023. It is
currently comprised of two Executive Directors and one
Independent Non-executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

(Executive Director and Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Investment Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Investment Committee are as follows:

(@) To review and evaluate the Group’s development plan and
strategies and to make recommendations to the Board
thereon;

(b) To review and make recommendations to the Board on key
proposals of investment (including mergers and acquisitions,
joint venture and equity investments) and financing projects
of the Group for business development purpose;

(c) To review and make recommendations to the Board on other
significant investment matters;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Investment Committee (cont'd)
(d) To review and evaluate the Group's risks exposure from its
investment projects as a whole;

(e) To review the relevant Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
evaluate whether any proposed investment project has or
would attract any disclosure or compliance obligation
thereunder;

To determine whether the proposed investment projects are
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole;

To supervise the implementation of the abovementioned
investment projects duly approved by the Board; and

(h) To review, study, evaluate or make recommendations on
other matters as delegated by the Board.

Throughout the year, the Investment Committee met once to
conduct an in-depth performance review to the Board of the
Company. The Committee also evaluated the performance of
individual asset classes and sectors and rebalanced the portfolio to
maintain alignment with our strategic objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
-~ followed.
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BUSINESS MODEL, PURPOSE AND VALUES

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition, the
Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Anti-corruption policy

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptance of advantages by employees and a whistleblowing
mechanism to provide guidance to employees and external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual
improprieties relating to the Group.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
RS
The Process of
r Internal
Control
Monitorin L 4
e A &R B 12
il

g

Information &

AERRZR

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(@) The Group financial reports are reliable;
The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

BERE BARS | f
B~
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [\ Be B K AR EE 1= ()
(CONT'D)
Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd) BEREERABEZRENBRE (E)

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are  AEBERNIPEERENETZAERTIOT ¢
as follows:

Control Environment BEEIRIE

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins | B AMEZENWERERTS - AHEEEH
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. Thereason | ZAEE - THAEEBUNEENEEKREF
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding | HARBRESZNAIR - EEB2EASHEEBK
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the | B#{TEZFHNA N - HEH  EEENEFE
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will | RIEEEEEBHITREBEELR -

influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.

Control Activities EETE

The internal control of the Group includes the following areas: 7N £2 [ 8] (9 P 2B B 4R A 3 LA T S0HE ¢

e Integrity and ethics e mEREEEREST
e Commitment to competence e HAEE
e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation s EEERERZEENSH
e Management philosophy and operating style o EEFHHREKEER
e Organisational structure . ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂ%
e Assignment of authority and responsibility o DIRERMELE
e Human resource policies and practices e ANEFRBERESR
0
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)

e

A EERAIBEELE (&)

ERERERABEZRGNBRE (E)

Information and Communication

The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

Bt/ 81T

MERRXR

AEENRMERRBNT AR :

Governance
ESISN
B /A

Board of Directors

Ultimate responsible body
REBERE

Management
EEE

Decision-making body
p #

/;Q

)

Department /
Functional Heads
B/ B EEEE

Risk owners

EEEEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.

1

Audit Committee
BERZEEE®

Governance body
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [\ Be B K AR EE 1= ()

(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd) BEREERABEZRENBRE (E)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

B

BERFENERE UL EEAIEE - ZEF
R EMAREZARBIRE —ERARR
BEMTTNEF o I - 2B 15 BRI A AR &
EREAAMTECEYRMBEETEBENTEA
BEBBE BARENTEEONEESEER  L#E
BEERRE/RTESS -

Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with .T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with code provision D.2.4(e) of the CG Code. There are
guidelines to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of
the Group to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group
is strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not
limited by the following ways:

— define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

restrict access control to inside information by employees on
a need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;

reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information to ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality; and

The Board and the senior management review the safety

measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2024

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider ESG performance and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 42. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on
the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD EEZeeE EZSETZESEER
COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL IREBF RS HE BN RIS &%
MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee #HE-Z_WNF=A=+—HLFEEEREEY
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the REZEBTZES2E€% RIABFASHERBR

year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows: RIFIIZEMT ¢
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration  Investment General  Types of
Director Board Committee ~Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting  Training
£ ESe ENZEE REZEE FMHZEE REZEE RREFAE HIEN
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry WAL 717 171 17 AB
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert WHELE 717 1n AB
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony WHELE 717 11 11 AB
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin HEHRLE 1/ 1 AB
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun oy i n ”n ”n AB
Independent Non-executive Directors B H1TES
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELE 717 22 1 11 11 1 AB
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BEREEE 717 22 11 11 1 AB
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong ErERET 717 212 il AB
Notes: FEE :
A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings A SIFHE &% HHER REY
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates B: MERE - PR REFER
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS EREEE

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and AAFEFEBEERATLRESE SHE - KR
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a BHEEACESEEESTEHE REAEHN
key means to enhance corporate governance standard. {HEWERFGEAATEE  HEEAQTIEH RS
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the =& o Z%{ 4 & 24 2 5 43 35 www.ebon.com.hk 1 3
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company. ZHEEAEEREER SRR o
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its

financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s

website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of
channels to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and the investment community. The Company is committed to
providing information to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as making
available all corporate communications on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders” Communication Policy is
reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
the prevailing regulatory and other requirements. Effective and
timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times. During the
year, the Board reviewed the Shareholders Communication Policy
and considered that it remained effective.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@ Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to
pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report for the address of the
Company’s principal and branch share registrars.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders and
the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Board chairman) shall attend the annual general
meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting, the
Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each Board
Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to time through
Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5.  Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present
at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all
his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way.
The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of
the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), in both English and Chinese, are available on the
Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews
website at www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - # 8RER#ES

OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 41 to 73.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:

¥

KOWLOON H&

o)

2

"

Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2024.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The ESG workgroup, strengthens its
approach to sustainability and seeks to facilitate our business in
strategizing, planning, recording and reviewing various
departments more effectively using data analytics and reports back
to the Board. The Board is assisted by its ESG workgroup in
overseeing implementation of ensuring that effective risk
management and internal controls are in place. The Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 77. This Report was approved by
the Board on 24 June 2024.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

e Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome

54:3

Input
BA

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
SR

RERE

F &t
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Board of Director
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Ultimate responsible body
RREBEHE
Vision I Result/Risk
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ESG Workgroup
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Governance body
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Management
EEE
Decision-making body
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Policy Result (e.g. KPI)/Risk
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Department/

Function Heads
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The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for
discussions and actions where necessary.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major

daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders

F &t (@)

Kt ESR(E)

S8 — B ELE

EMEBEEEERBETEANSNEHBRER
B WEERMRETHRITARCEFEEEINS
HLUTHEENABBERE !

Key external stakeholders

RN E

FTERIBIFHE
Staff members %% Board of Directors
[z i £zg
® Daily communications (Corporate * Meetings
Websites, Meeting and staff activities) -]
BEBE (ARAAY  FERETEY) « Workshop
o Staff activities TG
BIES
 Performance appraisals
RE TG

8.8
Shareholders 8@8

i R

* Corporate website
D RA

¢ Corporate communication
document
D RBERRMF

* General meetings
BRRAE

N

Suppliers
]

® Daily communications (Corporate
Websites, Meeting and conference call)
ARBERAMAE FEREERH)
® Assessments / supplier appraisals
ARAE / AR AR
* Meetings
'i#

Other stakeholders
HitiE &

Government
and regulatory
organisations
B REEAM

* Daily communications

BRBE
® Forums, seminars
B WHE

Non-government
isations

and community

FBATAEB R E

DR

* Social media
IR EE

* Community services

HERBE

* Corporate website

Customers

&

 Daily communications (Corporate
Websites, Meeting and conference call)
EREBB(ATAY BERBFESR)

* Meetings
&

 Social media

HRIRRE

%
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment to
determine important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained in the
last engagement cycle and the management’s insights, the ESG
Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would have a direct
or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or
erode economic, environmental and social value of itself, its
stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup asked
stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders. In this participatory
assessment, five key issues were identified as being of paramount
importance: energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emission, financial
performance, occupational safety and health, product
responsibility, and customer satisfaction. These issues were
meticulously ranked according to their significance in the
assessment. Meanwhile, the remaining eight issues were not
considered as critical concerns at this stage and thus were not
prioritized in the ranking. This focused approach allows us to
concentrate our efforts on the areas that most impact our operations
and stakeholder interests, ensuring a strategic and effective
response to our most pressing challenges.

FtrESRGE)

S — EIFHETE (F)

LEoh - HAEMETERMTMG BEHAEEAMIFOEIBEENZ
BHoHREARETHERRERL  HERUTGASEET REL-
BE2EBHERSHERREEENRME BiR HERELSTFEACHEE
T=EEXZEE ZEZESEEI[ESEINLRE/E - REHESEH
BE EBNEDNERELENSE  RERGSEEED - THEAERE
NEEEFERD/AKEARZELZENEE - ZBRERMEANSESEE
NEFEFEA—ESHEEER: (1)28  QXARQHNEEHE - X2
BN RMBIHOEEEEENERERE R ERBEEREH
B BBRE BEZZEEE EREEIREFREE - ZERERER
RFGETNEEREETROHS - B > BREERGET \EZETRRLE
REE SHEPABELER - ZSEHSHERMATSENRPIRYEE
BREHENSAARATENHE - BEYURMSE AR LR
REMHIRIE
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high

sustainability impact.

Energy efficiency &
greenhouse gas emissions

R RBREREHR

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world

Customer satisfaction FFWEE ¢ ¢ Product responsibility 7R #HE

=

58

A

ARAE

) ?eﬂ

F &t (@)

BPESRE(E)
B8 — ERHETE ()
AEEEEBEHARRBIGER - AEEAE
BEBAREBN AT LTI HERE LR
FAEENTRERREYERYEERS -

Customer privacy 2F#.\8 @ @ Operating compliance &E4&18
@ Occupational safety and health B3 %28 EE

4 Staff retention and development & T B Rk &R

* Financial performance gf#%%i5 ¢
3 @ Procurement practices $REEH IR
Climate resilience RIRAEH & * * Research & development &7z g5 3¢
Use of other L 2 Local community involvement 3t E£2 82

® major materials
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1
Materiality EE# k¥
¢ Environment B
0 ¢ Economic &%
Internal;Stikeholders ¢ Social ##&
AL E

Top priority BEE#®

202

409

O g

400 Financial performance

BB RE
Product responsibility
EREE

200 Energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emissions
° BEIRSE R E RS HEA
Customer satisfaction

BEREMRE

Occupational safety and health
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders” priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPIs) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse gas
(GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy use
and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2024.
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SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING (CONT'D)

We are pleased to report that The Group has successfully met these
targets. The reductions achieved by 31 March 2024 are as follows:

GHG Emissions: Reduced by 21%
Total Energy Use: Reduced by 17%
Water Consumption: Reduced by 27%

Our success in meeting these targets can be attributed to several
key initiatives:

Energy Efficiency Programmes: Implementing advanced energy-
efficient technologies across our operations.

Water Conservation Efforts: Introducing water-saving measures and
technologies.

Employee Engagement: Fostering a culture of sustainability among
employees through training and awareness programmes.

Building on our success, The Group is setting new, more ambitious
targets for the coming years to further reduce our environmental

footprint. These include:

Further GHG Emissions Reductions: Targeting an additional 6%
reduction by Year 2027.

Enhanced Waste Management: Aiming to decrease non-hazardous
waste by 6% by 2027.

Increased Energy Efficiency: Striving for a further 6% reduction in
total energy use by 2027.

Advanced Water Conservation: Setting a goal for an additional 6%
reduction in water consumption by 2027.

Our commitment to sustainability remains strong, and we will
continue to:

Invest in innovative technologies and practices to improve
environmental performance.

Engage with stakeholders to align our sustainability goals with their
expectations.

Monitor and report on our progress transparently and regularly.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 86.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 6% by 2027 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 88. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) BIR @)

A1 Emissions (cont'd) AT EER ()

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility SEEBEZRYUIER | WAIEEERAIRS - RAF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to E X AEELEZINERAETERYEENRE - K
non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set EKBEFHEIN_—Z_+FKEERENEEEEY
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 6% by EESH{REELHD 6% °

2027 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BESRpEM AR E (50E 1) (W) 0.004 0.005
NOx (tonnes) RELY () 0.003 0.005
SOx (tonnes) FRE 4 () 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) SRR (W) 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEREHNAE (BIE1K2)

(CO,e tonnes) (ZEtIREEN) 439.491 434.219
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) HiESR(EE 1) (ZEthEEmE) 11.960 14.171
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes)  E#HEH (88 2) (= &L & 8 H) 427.531 420.048
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area  E{@EEERI R EHEHK (8E2)

(CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEILRERNEFHK) 0.064 0.055
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) BEESNEZEHER (8EE2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZELHmEEM, ES) 3.393 3.231
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BUBEEBENEREE (881 K2)

per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEtmEENEFHK) 0.066 0.057
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) SEEENFREE (BE1KR2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEtmEEW &S) 3.488 3.340

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)' EEERYEERE (W)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EEREEYE+L LS (M) 9.113 8.820
Total non-hazardous waste produced BUEHEEMELESERY

per floor area (tonnes/m?) wme (W, FHK) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BHEREEFMELEEZERY
per employee (tonnes/employee) we (g, ES) 0.072 0.068
! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. ! BEBERYEEEMTEE -
BHRTRRERDT202324F 55 85
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have been replaced by LED
spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower the indoor
temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but maintains
approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out fluorescent
lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy and we will
also keep an eye on the latest power-saving fluorescent lamps. The
Group has set to reduce total energy use per employee by 6% by
2027 from the Baseline.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) B @

A2 Use of Resources (cont'd) A2ERER ()

Water x*

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every SBAKIAEEERR  kERZEERNVVE

drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff BB REESHEIRE HBEIRSHIAK -
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps ~ Pt EHSE R KBS RKBENKEE » kR
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow RATHERTHREREFDHRIZEGKRE - R
when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of HREREMED KM SHESERRER (R
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart REMES - REDEH R - BEBRK) - KEELE
green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce total FEF-ZT-+tFESERENEEKEREER
water consumption per employee by 6% by 2027 from the B4 6% - HREEER » EE2EMATHRER
Baseline. There are no refrigerant emissions to account for within ~ ##E 1 R BLHEHFHE -

Scope 1 due to the limited nature of the data, which fails to provide

a comprehensive depiction of the actual scenario.

Total energy consumption (MWh) BERMEE KFLE) 709.202 705.351
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? B EAES OkRE)? 41.931 49.593
Total direct energy consumption EVEEEENERERAEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) KRB FHXK) 0.006 0.007
Total direct energy consumption BEREENEEREREKEE

per employee (MWh/employee) (KRR 1EE) 0.333 0.381
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) BiZRERAEE JRRE) 667.271 655.758
Total indirect energy consumption BUBHERNEZEREEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (JREBEFHK) 0.100 0.086
Total indirect energy consumption BEEENBEERAEE

per employee (MWh/employee) CkER1E8) 5.296 5.044

Water consumption (m?) k& (MLTTK) 780.480 868.680

Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?)  EBfI#EEENEKE
(75K FFK) 0.117 0.114
Water consumption per employee BEEENFEKE(LF K ES)
(m3/employee) 6.194 6.682

Total packaging material (tonnes) GEMREE (W) 1.603 2.025

Total packaging material per floor area BUEHEBNEREMREE
(tonnes/m?) (g, EF5K) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee BEEENEBEMBEE
(tonnes/employee) (W, 1E8) 0.013 0.016
2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US. 2 HFIRIEEIA USFHE ©

‘2 AT RRA R A 2023/24% F 5 87
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 86.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) RIHFERE (1)
Office paper (tonnes) WA= AT (W)
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENFIH) PO A (W8
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change
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A4 RiRB 1L

Climate Change is undoubtedly one of the greatest challenges REZ{tEERAREHNRARE 22— HRAK
facing humanity. The World Economic Forum’s Global Risks ZHEwE(ZZ==_F2REABRE)BRRTBEHK
Report 2022 ranks climate action failure as the top long-term JIAHANRBARE  AERRRTFEERBRE
threat, giving rise potentially to the most severe impacts over the W& - it KMEERBASIREEREEE
next decade. Therefore, we aim to build resilience to climate MR#¥EE  URKGEEERERECHNREREILE
change by identifying and managing climate change risks and #RES{HNEN  UEBREHHRMEE
opportunities and by developing strategies to adapt to and to ERHFE -

mitigate the impact the climate change on our operations.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related ~ TR#EIEKMEE R RIZEREE R R BT EE

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
BHERER
Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and

extreme weather events
BminBRER  flBERREREIRRXREN

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
enERRk - fIIRB LA

Transition risks

R R
Technology risks, such as use of green technology
RAgEkE - Flanse BB
Market risks, such as shift towards green products
mERAR  flngeERBBRT

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

miEEkE - BlanfRERE RN

Green products

BREEM

g

More spending on repair and to improve adaptive
capacity of premises

KBNS AR S YR B 68 0 RARRERA X

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue

(EERRCE U635 P S

More spending on cooling

12 ke RAERER X

Increased cost of raw materials

JR AT AN I

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

BAEERPRAREMBN

Higher insurance costs

PR ER AN

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies
EFRERXNBRSNERBERALENRNECER
LUz n
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate change. The Group has set a
reduction target of 6% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year 31 March 2027. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.
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SOCIAL (coONT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B1 Employment

As at 31 March 2024, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 126 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’” Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to employment issues during
the year.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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SOCIAL (coNT'D) ad—{C))
Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd) ERRETESR R
B1 Employment (cont’d) B1 1% (i)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is AEBETHAZRET  HARNT :
comprised of:

Gender #31

Male
B

462%

Female
egi3

Turnover rate BB Turnover rate B
11.97% 14.39%

Our Group’s turnover rate for the year is 10.16% which is lower FAEEMNFREREH10.16% EREBETEE
than the overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong is 10.3%.  BEBZ10.3% °
According to the turnover rate and vacancy rate published by RE-—FE-—FEBAHNEFEESE/A AL
Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management 2021. MK EFZRE
Age group Fii#a 5! Length of service BR# % 5
Turnover rate BEREER
46% TSL(;ruzover rate BEREZR 0-3 )fars
19.84% FEST
elow > 3-5 years
N BE;ELELOT BB=ETF

5.56%

. 30-50 . > 5-10 years
=+EATH mERETE
Over 50 . > 10-15 years
BRI TR BR+TE+IF

. > 15 years
Bat+aE

Turnover rate Bl
13.42%
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)

During the reporting year, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in our Group
regarding the environment, labour standards, occupational health
and safety, anti-corruption or data privacy. Warehouse and shop
frontline staff members are under supervision to ensure they work
safely. All staff members, before going to construction sites, have
attended safety training. When entering construction sites, they are
equipped with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

In view of the outbreak of Coronavirus, we have continued to
implement the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

e Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members when they need

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related BE=ZF (BEERFE)

fatalities occurred in each of the BEEITHHARR
past three years including the fe=
reporting year

Lost days due to work injury AIGELXTERH
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B3 Development and Training

e Professional development: Product
e Compliance and legal programme
*  On-board training

e Health and safety training

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female

Category — managerial
Category — general office
Category — frontline/operational

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and
employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female
Category — managerial
Category — general office

Category — frontline/operational
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T2

EBEREIER(E)
B3 /& R 1Z 3|

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working ZIK%I?—’:;EIM%E%M EBREESENTER
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its EEEEESHRMNHEIIRSERRELR
training and career development programmes with employees. A ?561?‘3&1,\%!3%/25’]1%3"75* CBURERETEBER
wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the MBUMETER-

needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

Set out below are some training and development programmes: LT HHoEIRBERTE

e EXBRE Em

o ARREEE

o ARSI

o REHEZEIEI

ZEHRIREEER B DM

ZIEER L 100.0% 100.0%
MR — S 100.0% 100.0%
PR — 100.0% 100.0%
Hhl —EEfRE 100.0% 100.0%

Rl — — R 100.0% 100.0%
R — AR EE 100.0% 100.0%

BURRESERIE D -
BEEETREZIN

FIGRF B 1.215 1.214
MhH — S5n 1.424 1.243
MR — &% 0.966 1.179
Hhl —EERE 0.875 2.688

Rl — — R 0.714 0.737
R — AR EE 1.697 1.576




SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
SrhRE BARE

SOCIAL (coNTD) o —C))

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) ERKRSETER (&)

B4 Labour Standards B4 % TR/

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of HMBFHELEHIELNERER LB R

our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour. ERFILTIRETHE - AEREMAFSEER
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants’ identity E - RFEXERBENSH  BEGANFERR
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews — %¥&#& - M EHR L ERBER (BFERBEBREF) ET
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures) @& LARREFERT  EAHE - BELE TRETH
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of ER#FKZIRAE  WHAXLERLREEE -
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated

to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management B5 (R fESE &2
The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by HERESEMS  RHEAINETEHEHIHEN
geographical region is indicated below: T

Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub-  KfEE : [ EHER | WEREA B EEFHNRBEZRB
contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding BBEANERMERR NRELEHE -
HK$1 million.

«
\
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along
the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality and
sustainability performance. The results determine which suppliers
and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had significant actual or potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights or labour practices.

To mitigate supply chain risk, we adopt multiple sourcing strategies
to avoid over-reliance on any one vendor. Our five largest
suppliers in aggregate contributed to less than 30% of our total
purchases during the year.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We give
preference to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

Number of active suppliers
By region: Hong Kong
Non-Hong Kong
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received. And we did not receive any complaints
lodged with the Consumer Council.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.

Pt
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont’d)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks in
markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We did
not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our staff handbook has
outlined such code of conduct to all staff members including
prevention of bribery.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in the
induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions of
employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
SR BARSA

SOCIAL (coNT'D) o —C))
Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd) ERKRSETER (&)
B8 Community Investment B3t ERE

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local FAEBEHHIEBRBARLERTHZEE AEH
community wherever it operates. Charitable and other donations RERFEHZREREMBREEER28,1608 7T
made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$28,160. We EMRA/LEXFIFRRBER  FEEFER2NMEE
believe that support to communities does not limit to donations but ~ BET4 °

also 12 hours for voluntary works.

We also encourage our employees by meeting to actively HMTEESZHBEIBBSELETE  HE
participate in community initiatives, believing that their HERMEAEELESRERDNEERE - KMHE
contributions will create a positive ripple effect throughout the BELSHHE  BERBRENPEEHRRK
neighborhood. By caring for society today, we pave the way for a

brighter, more prosperous future for the generations to come.

Distribute food to the elderly E.Bon Interior Design Competition x HKU space
BERMARE TRIITERR LB RBEEEEBR
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk
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SUSTAINABILITY in a changing world
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INDEX =]
Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
B —REER
RRERER i BRKF 2% (HR)
Subject Area A — Environment
TRERA—RE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : S
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 84
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIKE FRBERRRERBHN  mAkRIHHES EEREZERYNEESN : B=F
@ BER
(b) BIHBTATERSENHBEERSAM
&R}
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 85
BREMIEEAL BB R R AR EIE - B=F
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 85
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
BRANIER A2 B (E) MagREE(SBE2) REREHERE (UMEE) R (ER)BE - B
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Explain 85
BRANIERA13 FRELXAERRNAE (LMEHE) K (ER) ZE - i
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 85
intensity.
BREMERAL4 FELEZEEENES UMHE) R (WER)ZE - B=r
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 84
BEREMIEEALS BT LB E B ER B ERE LB BRI R - BF
KPI'AT.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 85
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BEREAMIEEALG HABREEERBEREREYNG E  RELFATINHEEERAETELER B=F
FREREREY D ER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EmEA2 : BREA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 86-87
materials.
—RIKE BYERER (IR - KREMEM R WBEE - B=F
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 87
total (kWh in "000s) and intensity.
BRANIERA2.1 REAASNEER REEER(DE  foUh) AFE (UTETREFE) R B
BE e
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 87
BREMIERA2.2 BREKEREE - i)
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 86
BREMIERA23 RORPTET L VEERE RS B R R BEEEL B RATRMA DR B
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 87
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BERAMIEEA24 HUSREVEA KR LRI BEMREE  URMTIHAKYEEERBERELR B=F
RFTERENHY L8R
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 87
with reference to per unit produced.
BREMERA2S HEMAABEMENEE (NS R (WER) BEEENVWEE - S
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Aspects, General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
Bl —REER
BREARER Ei:ipud

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #8RERES

H

Compliance Reference
level (page)
ARKF 2% (’R)

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 88
natural resources.

— iR AR BT AHRERAREFREREALENRE o B

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 88
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BASRERIER A3 HREBEHHRERRAREFNEAFERCRNERFHZENTE - EF

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 89
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RIRE AR EHEER RSB TAEEFENEARREESENRE - B

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 89-90
those which may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BRERUIER A4 HAEERTREHRTAEEFBNEARREESE - REHTH - BF

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 90-91
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
— iR EERHNN R BEREA  TESE - B FEHE - St RIERN eiS)
REMSBRER
@ BE R
b) BFHBTAREARENEBEEERREN
HOE R o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 91-92
group and geographical region.
BRI B.1 2R EEER (NERNRE) FRABNRMEI D NESAH - EF
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 92
BASEAENIERB1.2 2R FRANRIEEBRISNESRAE - &7
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EmE - —REER
RREBESR i BRKF 2% (AR
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
fEEB2 : REHEZE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 93
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE FEREZEZTHERERAEESHABMELREN feS)
(@) BE R
b)  EFEBTABEARZENEBEEERSRS
BER -
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 93
including the reporting year.
B EIEEB2.1 BE=F (BEEHFE)SFRITHNWABRLE - iR
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 93
BSEENIEEB2.2 HIEERTHEEE - EF
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 93
are implemented and monitored.
B ANIEEB2.3 A RAAR B REE R 2 - URABITRESRLE - el
Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEmB3 : BERE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 94
work. Description of training activities.
—MRINE FRRAESET THERENNEREENEE - #HlEIES - EF
KPI' B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 94
senior management, middle management).
B ANIEEB3 1 MR RESER (MSREEE PREEE) BSNZIREETSLL - B
KPI' B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 94
category.
B ENIEEB3.2 ZURRESERNBS  SHEERMZINFIIEEH - EF
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmB4 : &5 TR
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 95
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE BREABLETRRGETH : eSS
@ BR IR
by  BIFHEHBTABEASENEEEERRAN
By -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 95
forced labour.
B ARRIER B4 R RREANEEABRETREHET o el
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 95
B ENIEEB4.2 WA RREREREHERERER RS el
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INDEX (CONT'D) #5l| @)

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EmE - —REER

BRERER Fiipus BHKF 2% (’R)
Operating Practices

SEREM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : fLEEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Comply 95-96

—RIRE ERHEENREREE AR FeAS Y

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Comply 96

BREANIEREBS. Zit@E D NEEEHE - FeAS Y

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where Comply 96
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

BRI RIEEB5.2 R AR AAEENES  aESTEREMNNHEREE - URBEBATR ey
BERGE

KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Comply 96
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BREMIERB53 B ARAR A M EESERANRERESEBNIES - URABEIITRERS S
Pz

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Comply 96
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BREANIEEBS 4 MR BREHERHEES ARRERKRBBENES » UREEATRERTE - eAS

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EREE

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 97
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RIRE BEFRHERNBENERRZE  BES EERLBSEURBRT AN BsF
@ BE R
(b) BIHBTABEATENREEERRS)
By o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comply 97
health reasons.

BASEEMIER B6.1 EESEEXERAHTRR2RRREAMARKNESLL - BF

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are Comply 97
dealt with.

BREMIERB6.2 EEENERRBRBNRFHE UAREHGE - B

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Comply 97
rights.

BERENIEEB63 B R AN E B R MIED o FEAS Y

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Comply 97

BRENIEEBO.4 HREERERBEREREWER - FEAS Y

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Comply 98
implemented and monitored.

BRENIERBO.S HHEEEERMRERABBEE - URBEEAITRERSE - FeAS
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 98
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RiNE BEAR AR - BR - FERIAREN feS)
@ BER
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KPI' B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Comply 98
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
B ENIEE B .1 REHFHAHBTARLEERBYCEENETHRARMENBE RFDRER EF
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they Comply 98
are implemented and monitored.
B ENIEEB7 2 WG SR RBES - URBBEATRERSE - EF
KPI' B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Comply 98
BARENIERB7 3 WAAESERE TRHENRESEI - EF
Community
HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
FEEBS | HEERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Comply 99
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
—RIE BRUHBSERTBETAEEREIHEFTENRRAXKEDEZEEHLET B
HMEVER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Comply 99
BREMIERBS.1 X EREE - B
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Comply 99
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% #8RE

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective of Verification

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599) “E.Bon”
to undertake an independent verification of its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The Report stated
the economic, environmental and social performance of E.Bon in
the period of Tst April 2023 to 31st March 2024 for its major
operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (coNT'D)

Independence

E.Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e The Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide of the SEHK;

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

KT Ting
Chief Operational Officer
June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report B Z#A#R &
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E.Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 116 to 197, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2024;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (coNT'D)

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision

for inventory obsolescence.

Key Audit Matter
HMREEER

Provision for inventory obsolescence
BEFERE

Refer to Notes 2.3.4, 4.1 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements for the disclosures of the related
accounting policies, judgements and estimates.
BERERSTEE  HERMETIHE  F2HEEVBERRNET
234-41K19¢°

As at 31 March 2024, the Group held net inventories of
approximately HK$169,712,000 after provision of
obsolescence.
R-CE-_NFE=A=+—8"
FE#9169,712,000 87T °

BEEERNBRERREBEREEEE

Management assessed the provision at each period ended
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining
the amount of allowance required for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, management evaluates the ageing of
inventories, their historical and estimated future sales
pattern and other factors and compares the carrying value
of inventories to their estimated net realisable value.
EEEFEEENBRBERFHEETERE - REEBRFRFHE
FERFRETHEN  EEESTETERER  BELRMGEFREH
ERARAEMER  YHEFE 2 REEEL AT TERFE -

1 1 0 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

FARETEIE @)

HMESEATENEERTERBEENRERESE
BIH o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN BT NAEERERETEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for
inventory obsolescence included:
BMBREFERE 2 FHRFEE

We understood and evaluated the key controls by
which management reviews on inventory provision
including procedures on periodic and annual
review of obsolete and aged inventory, provision
for inventory and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors. We validated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to estimate the provision
for inventory obsolescence;

BN THRAEEEEEHNFERENERES  8FE
HRFEENBREERERTE  FERBNESF  XEB
ZRAMAFT T REMNREMNEAME SR E RZHKFRET
HEAERRANE SRR - ZHfiRET BREHMG
BEFERENEROBERIZS

We understood, assessed and challenged the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the
assumptions adopted in the provision policy and
basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-
moving inventories by referencing to their ageing,
historical and subsequent sales patterns and
estimated future sales;

BMTH  FERERRBEBRPARABRNESEMS
ReEt  UBBSETHRE EBLRERIHEEAR
RETRREE T B RERBER R P TFENEE |



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Key Audit Matter
MREEER

The identification of inventory obsolescence and
determination of estimated net realisable value require the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including their
nature, ageing, latest selling price, and expectation of
future sales orders. The estimates are subject to
uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.
BABRFEREEMMTIERFEFTEEHERAGRMGS &
FEHEHME - Rk - ROOREERYARRESTENTAS - BRI
ETHBY BFERIMRTBEETRERZMZE -

We focused on this area because of the significance of the
gross inventory balance to the consolidated financial
statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the provision for inventory obsolescence.
EMEERLER D HRNAFEERE GRS M BERRNEEEUAR
BETBEFTERBRS KOG RAE -

FRRETEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESANAEERRET SR

— We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of
the ageing report of inventory against goods receipt
notes;

R RN E S MR ETE IR RS RN

— We tested, on a sample basis, the sales records of
inventories against sales invoices of the past 2
years and the inventories utilisation rate to ensure
the accuracy and completeness of provision for
inventory obsolescence;
EAERBEMENHERTHRURFEHETERT
BRNAZR DRABRFERBIERERTEN

—  We tested, on a sample basis, of estimated future
sales against secured sales orders received from

customers;
BRMAYRREES 2 CEINSE ST E MR E s R0kl
EER

—  We also assessed the estimated net realisable value
by comparing the estimated selling price and sales
quantity of inventories with the corresponding post
year-end sales data; and
EMTEBLBFENGTEERHEHEBRERNER
REEHE AT TERFE K

— We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of inventory provision.

EMAETERETENEMERYE -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the
judgements and assumptions made by management in
relation to their assessment for provision of inventory
obsolescence were supportable by the available
evidence.

ERFATHRER  RMRAEEEREYBRFERBNTMG
Pt B A A BT R R T R IR B R B ST o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&%H W

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE=-Z-ME=A=+—-ALFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that have been/may be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Exchange gains/(losses) on translation
of financial statements of
foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Losses on revaluation of properties

held for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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BBER
MBER  FHE

B AT 15 B A2
FRSBRAX

KD B A EEGFER

Hit2mEKE(FR)

BRHENRENRSEERSE

MR E

MEBIINEBMBEHRERZ
Rz, (BHR)

HEAKTEEN I BERS
#IEE
EfBFERNEZER

BHREGMFERMEZ
BIASE

Notes
B EE

10

13

16

25

2024 2023
—EE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT FT
459,848 454,764
(280,638) (274,158)
179,210 180,606
1,291 782
(3,088) 1,003
(1,195) (2,431)
(92,687) (90,141)
(69,054) (71,544)
14,477 18,275
1,924 1,886
(5,539) (3,492)
(3,615) (1,606)
10,862 16,669
(2,319) (2,596)
8,543 14,073
155 410)
(7,576) (3,422)
1,250 552




Notes
BEE

Other comprehensive loss for the year, SEHMm2EEHE @ BRH%E

net of tax
Total comprehensive income KRR EEREFE

for the year attributable to equity 2HENEEE

holders of the Company
Earnings per share BREF

(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (LS RELEEA)

— Basic and diluted — EAR#EE 15

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2024 2023
—EmEF —EI=HF
HK$/000 HK$’000
FHT T
(6,171) (3,280)
2,372 10,793

1.19 cents B

2.22 cents 4l

BHFERERAT20232455% 117
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2024 R=-Z-mWE=A=+-H

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Current income tax recoverable

Derivative financial assets

Time deposits with maturity over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

1 1 8 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

na
Notes
B EE
BE
kREBEE
WE - BERZE 16
FREEE 17
EEFEHRERE 25
FE AR B8 TR I EL A FEUR X 20
REBEE
=& 19
FEWERFR « EWRB K
H W 20
BHNEE 20
AT UK B A HA Fr S
TTEERmEE 24
FNERBB=18AWEBFRK
21
BeRBESEEY 21
HEE
s
AARFTBEELER
% 26
G2 27
R

B B AR R 3/

2024 2023

—EE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F T
282,812 302,032
37,344 35,902
5,325 5,352
4,840 4,744
330,321 348,030
169,712 144,909
115,145 94,298
3,837 3,269
4,394 3,183
- 223
30,309 23,365
57,377 123,296
380,774 392,543
711,095 740,573
71,884 71,884
423,609 424,831
495,493 496,715



2024 2023

—EMEF —EC=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MiEE FET FET
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Employee benefit obligations EBEEFEE 22 4,782 6,021
Lease liabilities HEas 17 19,418 8,460
Deferred income tax liabilities EILFERAE 25 14,500 17,201
38,700 31,682
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables AR R E AR 22 30,977 43,254
Contract liabilities EHas 22 62,804 70,643
Lease liabilities HEEaR 17 19,406 29,143
Borrowings EEN 23 58,602 63,969
Current income tax liabilities AEIFTEHEE 5,113 5,167
176,902 212,176
Total liabilities wem 215,602 243,858
Total equity and liabilities BEaREE 711,095 740,573

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 197 were #116E197 ENGEANBRRCEESER -2
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2024 and were —P&EXB-+WMAHE  YHTHEERKREE -
signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
Director Director
EE EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA %4 B #3572 /8 B2 BE B B 5 — GFRAEE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Z

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&#@m# 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZ=Z-WME=ZA=Z+-HBLEE

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  feserve  eamings Total
kx ROEE EftRE S0EE EAEE EXRE ATRE  REEN CH
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEx Tz  TExr  TEx TEx  TEx  TEx  TEzn

Balance at 1 April 2022 RZE--FMA-ALH 60,060 1201 144,507 6,979 2,89 182 2,180 252,516 470,521

Comprehensive income for the year ~ £E2H K

Profit for the year EEER - - - - - - - 14073 14073
Other comprehensive (loss)/income R 27 (58)/ Wi

Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ BEFHERBRRZERER

statements of foreign operations - - - - - (410) - - (410)
Loss on revaluation of properties BEERNEEREE

held for own use - - (3,422) - - - - - (3,422)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of CEE R R,

properties held for own use - - 552 - - - - - 552
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(BR)/ k588 - - (2,870) - - (410) - 14073 10793
Transactions with owners BfEEZRS
Dividends (Note 14(a)) R (HZE 14) - - - - - - - (6,006 (6,006)
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREIE (HE27)

(Note 27) - - - - - - 61 (61) -
Issue of ordinary shares under right issues 1R {HRBTEEIR (K3 26)

(Note 26) 11,824 9,583 - - - - - - 21,407
Total transactions with owners AFEEZRBAE 11,824 9,583 - - - - 61 (6,067) 15,401
Balance at 31 March 2023 RZB-ZEZRA=+-HEH 71,884 10,784 141,637 6,979 2,896 (228) 2241 260522 496,715

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA #R& 255 Bh 3k FEEIRE R BTEE — OFRIE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital Exchange Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total
B ROEE EfRE SHRE S42RE EXRE IERE REER CE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér fEx TEz TEx Tz TEx TEx TEx  TEn

Balance at 1 April 2023 RZBZZEMA-ALH 71,884 10,784 141,637 6,979 2,896 (229) 2,241 260,522 496,715

Comprehensive income for the year ~ EE2F N

Profit for the year EEREA - - - - - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ HAh 2 (5#8) /Wi

Exchange gain on translation of financial - BEMERUBRR 2 ERRE

8543 8543

statements of foreign operations - - - - - 155 - - 155
Loss on revaluation of properties BEERNEEREE

held for own use - - (7,576) - - - - - (7,576)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of REERBRNE HERE

properties held for own use - - 1,250 - - - - - 1,250
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (BR) /K548 - - (6,320 - - 155 - 8,543 2,372
Transactions with owners BfEELRA
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREAE (HEE27)

(Note 27) - - - - - - (162) 162 -
Dividends (Note 14(a)) B8 (M 14@) - - - - - - - (3594)  (3,594)
Total transactions with owners HiE4 2R REE - - - - - - (162 (3432)  (3594)
Balance at 31 March 2024 R-B-mEZA=+-RA&H 71884 10784 15311 6979 2,89 (73) 2079 265,633 495493

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA _& 4z & #E 5 4 8 7 FE B2 BB B B 5E — GFRI3E o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #&BE&REX

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE=-Z-ME=A=+—-ALFE

2024 2023
—E-lEF —EI=HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
My FET TR
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHRERE
Cash generated from operations REEECRS 28(a) 2,669 98,402
Income tax paid B TSR (4,928) (2,953)
Net cash (used in)/generated REES (TR, EEFRE
from operating activities (2,259) 95,449
Cash flows from investing activities REZHHERE
Payment for settlement of disposal of HERBENZRETH
forward contracts (934) (4,427)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE¥% - BERRE (10,595) (38,415)
Placement of deposits with maturity FAZHBEB=1EAKNER
over three months (187,237) (73,266)
Proceed from deposits with maturity FHABRB=BANERZ
over three months Fri8suE 180,293 49,901
Interest received 2WFE 1,924 1,886
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFATES (16,549) (64,321)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHRERE
Repayments of borrowings HEER 28(b) 4,172) (3,790)
Interest paid on bank borrowings B RITERIE 28(b) (3,533) (1,919)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAESEHS 28(b) (33,064) (27,128)
Interest paid on leases EHNEERNE 28(b) (2,0006) (1,573)
Proceeds from trust receipt loans ERWE S FEZE 28(b) 86,550 56,115
Repayment of trust receipt loans ERBIBERZER 28(b) (87,745) (48,759)
Proceeds from issues of shares under BIEHRETRG ZFEEE
rights issue - 21,407
Dividends paid BENRE (3,594 (6,006)
Net cash used in financing activities BRETEHFFASES (47,564) (11,653)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERBREEEWF
cash equivalents (R4, 181 (66,372) 19,475
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERATZEY
beginning of the year 123,296 104,199
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and HERBELEEYER
cash equivalents g (E518) 453 (378)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRETRATEEY
end of the year 21 57,377 123,296

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th-18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of properties
held for own use and derivative financial instruments,
which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& 815 Rk M &

—REH
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M2 BREE AT HFMiEE i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REREERSTTBERSH @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy 22 BERBEZH
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the @) EEBRAZHATREIETER

Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2023:

HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting

AEBR-Z-_=FA—-BHK
MEEREHAREABUT T RE
BT

BRGHENE IR EHBRNE (BTA)

HKFRS Practice Policies (amendments) ERNKREEN
Statement 2 ERREEIR

HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BRGENEE  EHIEHER(BIA)
Estimates (amendments)

HKAS 12 International Tax Reform BESHENENE  EARBENE —ZH-R
— Pillar Two Model Rules EIERSCHEN
(amendments)

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to BREHEAZNE EB-RIEENHEER
Assets and Liabilities BERBNELRE (B
arising from a Single EIES)
Transaction (amendments)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts EAUBREER RBEH

F17%
HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17 BRIRREER ERUBRERAE 7R
E17% HES

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS BRAMHREEN BRMHREENE 7 H
17 and HKFRS 9 — B78 REABBEREERE9
Comparative Information FHERER—LaE
(amendments) RACHEN)

The new standards and amendments to existing
standards listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 FREERETHELH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy (cont'd) 22 EBEEH(E)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations (b)  ERERAZFET RAZNEFTER R 52

not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not yet
effective for the annual reporting periods
commencing 1 April 2023 and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EBGTTERSE 198 (IBRTR)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EEETERZE 155 (BRTR)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
EBVERELERNSE 1658 BETAR)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)
EBSTTERE 7N RB BN
REHEBISE 798 (IBETA)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

EBREE S (BB

HKAS 21 (Amendments)
EEETERE 2155 (85T )
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
ERMBBMEENEI0RRER
ST ERSE 2858 (BRT &)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of adopting these amended standards and
interpretation of HKFRS and is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have a significant

#

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BaEI EARBSRIER

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

M RENEREEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
EREADEERE

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEERME R

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

BIERENES — ERAEHBETHERESR
EEEREINEHERNDE

Lack of Exchangeability

= A RBME

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEREBENAREGELECHNEERE
BEE

impact on the Group’s results and financial &o

position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REREERSTTBERSEH @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information 23 EBEASHBEESH
2.3.1Property, plant and equipment 2.3.1 ¥  BERRE

Properties held for own use are stated at revalued FFB RYEUEGEEYIER - &R
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than FEB RS % BERRE
properties held for own use, are stated at cost less BEEANBRRSITERRTRE
accumulated depreciation and accumulated EIEARR -

impairment losses.

Properties held for own use are stated in the FEB AMERGESUHARR KA
consolidated statement of financial position at their EMEE(NEGERZEMER
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at HZEMRZEMRINE - HiH
the date of revaluation less any subsequent REFRERE) IR - HEL
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and BEEFERTEREMR  UBRHE
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are RSB MNREERSEEEZ
performed with sufficient regularity such that the BEEAER -

carrying amount does not differ significantly from
that which would be determined using revaluation
values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation EFEERNRXEE ZENEMR
of properties held for own use is credited to the IBINAEEE A E (R E - MR EE
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it —EERREARIABMAZZERGH
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets B - BB EABER - L
previously recognised as an expense, in which case BRI AHERR EHEEE
the increase is credited to the profit or loss to the 2 REFERE @ MBBEMGR
extent of the decrease previously charged. A BARZEELAEM 2 &8 (W
decrease in net carrying amount arising on B) - BEFERINR -

revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly BERABEBEZSHEEERE
attributable to the acquisition of the items. B2 c BEMSERTERAS
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s SEWREZIA B B2 ARG
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, Mz MR B 2R SR E
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future W Bt ABREZREEREDS
economic benefits associated with the item will —HEBREE(WMER) BERE
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 2 BREECERLEBER - IEH
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the B EREEE 2 MBENE
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and T o

maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTBREEH @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

BEASHBEREN (E)
2.3.1 W%  BERRZE(E)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 2.3
2.3.1Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Properties held for Over the shorter of

own use unexpired term of lease
or 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of lease
improvements terms or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 32.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts
and are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

M BERRBZITETRME
AERFHEERAREGEEL

BHEEDBTTENT ¢
BEBRWE KREBHE
FHIH 505
(UBEEAE)
HEWEEE HEFHHSF
(UBEERE)
A £E 20%

R

RE 20%

BEEAUEAFHNEREBRET
BT RISIE (EA) o

FEEZEREESREMGFTTRE
S5 HEREENBRRZEE TR
B & &8 (FisE32.5) ©

HE 2 W R EIRZ G HRERE

BHZEZHEE  LEBDNES -

ReBEEMREZAENIER
RIESLBEARBEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTHREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd) 23 EASHBEEHRGE)

2.3.2Financial assets 232 2HEE
2.3.2.1 Classification 232178

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e  those to be measured at amortised cost;
and

e  those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

2.3.2.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d)
23.2.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group’s
financial assets carried at amortised cost
comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2
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2.3
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232358
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d)
2.3.0.3 Measurement (cont'd)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within “Other
(losses)/gains, net” in the period in
which it arises.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTBREEH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 ERSFHEHEER(GE)
2.3.2Financial assets (cont’d) 232 THEE (&)
23.2.3 Measurement (cont’d) 232352 (&)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “Other (loss)/gains,
net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.3.24 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. Details on how the Group
determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTHREH @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

23 EASHBEEHRGE)
2.3.3 EWIRS - ERRE SR AMER

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.3Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due
from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade, retention and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts and returns. The Group
recognises revenue when goods are transferred or
services are rendered to the customer.
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.5Revenue recognition (cont'd)

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that the
Group has transferred to a customer. In addition,
incremental costs incurred to obtain a new
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract
assets and subsequently amortised when the related
revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. A contract
liability is recognised by the Group when the
customer pays consideration in advance before the
Group satisfy the performance obligation to the
customer.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture in the wholesale and retail market.
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the
customer.

(b) Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to
contractors and property developers. Revenue
from the services rendered by the Group is
recognised over time as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset or
work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The Group
has applied the output method in recognising
the revenue from construction contracts over
time. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of
construction contracts is measured with
reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract
work.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd)
2.3.6Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 mEEERSTBREEH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 ERSFHEHEER(GE)
2.3.6Current and deferred income tax (cont’d) 2.3.6 FHRELFTEH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (cont’d) (b) EEFFH ()

The deferred income tax liability in relation to BOAREFEEBEREME
investment property that is measured at fair WIEE RSB A BT IREY
value is determined assuming the property ERTRHERERBWEN
will be recovered entirely through sale. R M EE °
Deferred income tax assets are recognised BEEMSHEEENARESR
only if it is probable that future taxable RIRERT & 20 A 4K S 0
amounts will be available to utilise those MERREERER -

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are EEREHEEREELRA
not recognised for temporary differences MEREERRENRINER
between the carrying amount and tax bases of WBENERMEEZHE(HER
investments in foreign operations where the RABEFBOAERE - ™
company is able to control the timing of the ZEZRUERFTEEATRR
reversal of the temporary differences and it is RARE) EH R o

probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are it T £ 7 4% 5% 8 B B0 1T A9 4
offset where there is a legally enforceable M APRBEEREBER
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 8 RELERIRERER
and where the deferred tax balances relate to —BiEHBERE - AR
the same taxation authority. Current tax assets EFEHEEREBIENE -
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity fisd B BE B Al O BB TR
has a legally enforceable right to offset and HEMNBARRFEEES
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to EREFEREEREES
realise the asset and settle the liability B AIRHREEREN
simultaneously. HEFEERE -
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or RERELEBIE RS PR
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items FERAEtEAREEERNER
recognised in other comprehensive income or BREB R - HLBERT - B
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also BADBREfEEREREER
recognised in other comprehensive income or e PR o

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REREERSTTBERSEH @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont'd) 23 EASHBEEHRGE)
2.3.7Leases 237 &
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HEREEEEAMHAEEERE
corresponding liability at the date at which the BRIAREAREEREESS -
leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease BHUREHERFHEERND - &
components. The Group allocates the SERBEANBINERESH
consideration in the contract to the lease and non- NREIEZEERFEERSD
lease components based on their relative stand- R RARBEREEANEL
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for EHEMS  AEECEETOH
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to MEKFHEEHD MAE—HEE
separate lease and non-lease components and DA ©
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis HEZRELEERER  YESEE
and contain a wide range of different terms and TRIZIFRF R AR - REH R
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose FeIEMREE  EREEAREZ
any covenants other than the security interests in HMEEEPZEMERIR - HE
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased BEETEREERER -
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are MEREENEEREBEDSER
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease EEEGE - HERBEREUTHE
liabilities include the net present value of the ENMHFRE

following lease payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed — BENR(BEEEEERM
payments), less any lease incentives ) BAMERAEESE
receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an — EREBEHIAXRINEIKA
index or a rate, initially measured using the HREFIN DTS EN
index or rate as at the commencement date AE#EENH

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group — NHREEERTASEES
under residual value guarantees FEA R

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the — BEEEEMNTEE(MEAR
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that SEAERETEZERE
option, and ) &

— payments of penalties for terminating the — XARLHEENIR(fHHE
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group HRMAEETEZEE
exercising that option. &) o
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.3.7Leases (cont'd)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

— any initial direct costs, and

— restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REREERSTTBERSEH @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)
2.3 Material accounting policy information (cont’d) 23 EXASHBRERER(E)
2.3.7Leases (cont’d) 2.3.7 HE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over EREEE-RREENERFR
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease R (ABIEE B ) R ERER
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is E-MAKEESERETREEER
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, R ACREEERBBEEEN
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the ERFRTE - AEESEMRY
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group ¥ -BERIBRAZINIHRE
revalues its land and buildings that are presented FEAEEFENERAREFTT
within property, plant and equipment, it has FEM -

chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are RHHEMEENRIERESRENER
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in hRERASMX - EHAELER
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a 128 B AIEE -

lease term of 12 months.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 AEBMEAEZE=—FX<A=1+H
— Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 B RN B REERSE
June 2021. The amendment provides an optional 163 18ET AR —2019 BB S [

practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to BHESRM - 2B ARET —H

assess whether a rent concession related to RO ATEESE - AFAEA

COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees BERTIRE2019BMRFBESHME

adopting this election may account for qualifying BENESEREEBEEEH - &

rent concessions in the same way as they would if MZIBENEEA TR - XA
they were not lease modifications. SEREESRERAR(MKEAIHE
HEBK) -

The practical expedient only applies to rent ZATREEREEZERARN2019E

concessions occurring as a direct consequence of REESREFEEEENESRR

the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the BEBRRUATHRERGETESER
following conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in @ HEARNWESHEHERE
revised consideration for the lease that is BREDR - MBS E
substantially the same as, or less than, the HEEEHHIHERERER
consideration for the lease immediately HE - ROREERE
preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only (b)) HESRWEMREESE
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and BER=ZZ2=Z—-%XA=+H

H2AE AN K

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms (c) THENHE MR R MR I &
and conditions of the lease. BEEEH -

The Group has applied the practical expedient to AEBMEHMESEK2019TMR

all qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions. FmERERESERRATTER

Tk e
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2024, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$120,000 (2023:
HK$344,000). The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States dollar
(“US$”), EURO (“EUR”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) denominated transactions.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

As at 31 March 2024, some group entities with
functional currency of HKD had considerable
amount of trade payables and bank balances and
cash denominated in US$. Under the Linked
Exchange Rate System in Hong Kong, HKD is
pegged to US$, management therefore considers
that there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ (2023: same).

At 31 March 2024, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2023: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, there will be no
significant impact on the post-tax profit of the
Group (2023: same).

At 31 March 2024, if the EUR had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2023: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have changed as follows. The changes are
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EUR denominated trade
payables.

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase
when EUR

— strengthened by 5%

— weakened by 5%

— A{E 5%
- EE{E 50/0

1 40 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24

3

ERELBRUAT 2B
BB BEF ORi4) /150

4= A
w3

B A5 SR AR B &

B 7S B B B ()
3.1 H¥EREZEGE)
(b) IMNEREE ()

R-ZE-_WE=A=+—8 " Hee
EBABTINETEEEREARE
ETBEMNEMAERUARET
HBRRE - RIEFEHBEET
BB rEETEN NEEER
ATEEEETNEXIIERR
(ZEZ=F MR -

R-Z-WE=A=+—-8  BE
AREEBIHE RES%N(ZF
T=F 1 5%) MAAEEMSHE
BAg  Er2URE@MzBRHE
BANELEAFE(ZE-=F:
E) °

R-ZBE-WE=A=+—8 ' BRE
BERBTIHAE REH(ZF
=% 15%) MAEEMEEE
BRE . IFEERNBEBHOT -
BETEANBREUBELENZ
EARREEER WS EIEA
gzo

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

(389) (180)

389 180




3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

3

BBERERE (E)

3.1

B¥RBEE (E)
) FFERRE
(i) REERERE

rEEzFERBEIERR
ERBREEEY BUEK
A BURRE R H MR
RURENEEEAN °

AERERENREEBYE
ENER  AEEERBE
BZRRT(HIASEAER
MW BEHEE)XH - WEL
HENTREZENBEE
BB -AREEREYTE
* o

MEAMERRTE  EEE
REBEAETE  BEE
BRBRARBERBLE
BREZNAELENHERS
R EL fth B USRR B9 T 1R (B 4 =
HAYE B 88 BY 4 LA B2 {8 B &F
- ERERRAREES
BIEREAK -

A R R B FE AR BB R A
ReawEEms  EEERE
HAE B R A A AT U E 1 o

AEEEATBMBREE
Bl 9SRLEFTBEBE
BEEE BB RERRR
FEWRREFRURENEERE
REMEREERE -

A EBEHEERE  ~ &
BEREZFRENEERK
ENEERREETEERE
WERR R ERRERUARE
WEE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D) 3 UHEREREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 HREBREEGE)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d) () F=ERRE)
(i) Risk management (cont'd) (i) EREE (&)
The expected loss rates are based on the EHEERDEREFNM
payment profiles of customers and the R R B R R MY ARRAE
corresponding historical credit losses FEFEME BLEBEXR
experienced. The historical loss rates are ETFURBRURREERP
adjusted to reflect current and forward- HBERWHIRRE NN EEE
looking information on macroeconomic ENREFRAEMEESR -

factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 EZEEL R-Z-MF

March 2024 and 2023 was determined as kK—ZE-_=F=A=+—H

follows for trade and retention receivables B HE ST AR 3% R BE WAL R B8 R A

and contract assets: RENEENBBRBEETE
mT

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
ERERRERRERUARENEE

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
¥

EHERE REAE BRRE SREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T T#x

As at 31 March 2024 R-E-mE=A=+-H
Provision on an individual basis  1{A RIS &R E 100% 1,291 (1,291) -
Provision on a collective basis it EEERE 0.90% 100,258 (902) 99,356
101,549 (2,193) 99,356

As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=%=H=+-H
Provision on an individual basis  1%{BRIEEEE 100% 1,031 (1,031 -
Provision on a collective basis REEEERE 0.48% 75,293 (366) 74,927

76,324 (1,397) 74,927
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 MBEBRERE@®E
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 31 HgEEEE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk d) FEELERE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current FEEEMEERERAR IR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that BEE2ER URRAEBERFES
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its ReRBUAREENRRIRDE
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer EER-
term.
As at 31 March 2024, the Group held cash and R-B-MF=A=+—-H0 &K%
cash equivalents of approximately HK$57,377,000 FEREZERREZEEDY
(2023: approximately HK$123,296,000) that could 57,377,000 T (ZE=-=F 4
be readily realised to generate cash inflows for 123,296,000787T) » AR RIRE
managing liquidity risk. ERERANEERDES AR -
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the remaining R-ZZB-ZNFR-ZF-Z=F=A
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the =t+—B  AEBRAQXARER
Company’s financial liabilities, based on BRASTRERFAEEIAZTHR
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date our FHHMzERMEBEZHRTENIH
Group can be required to pay. Balance date within A ARMIBALERK 12181
12 months equal their carrying balance circulating ANEHREERERBANERAE
both interest and principal as the impact of HYRRMEI 45 R o
discounting is not significant.
Total
Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  and2years and5years Over5years  cash flows amount
IR-FF, BANART
RER  -ERER MELER RENE Reng KA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TR TR
As at 31 March 2024 RZ2-mE=f=+-H
Trade and other payables ERERARHMERR 31,113 - - - 31,113 31,113
Borrowings (Note) B3 (=) 14,309 6,898 20,694 29,921 71,822 58,602
Lease liabilities HESE 20,983 15,662 4,488 - 41,133 38,624
Total 2t 66,405 22,560 25,182 29921 144068 128,539
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4= A
w3

B A5 SR AR B &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cONT'D) 3 BBEBRERE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 B#EBEE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d) d) mEELEEE)
Total
Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between 2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  and2vyears and5years Over5years  cashflows amount
SR-%9 BRNRER
REX  -EWER  RERER RENE Reng RAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TR TR TR TR TR
As at 31 March 2023 RZB-=%£=R=t+-§
Trade and other payables ERESREMERE 38,118 - - - 38,118 38,118
Borrowings (Note) RN GRS 14,806 6,329 18,990 34,870 74,995 63,969
Lease liabilities T 29,946 6,512 2,640 2,640 41,738 37,603
Total st 62,870 12,841 21,630 37,510 154,851 139,690
Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation Mizk : RIBEBRBESHIUHBER
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower 2% — ERAHBEREERER
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand BRzEHERZIE] BHE
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding RHEEESEE -2 EERE
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which ERRN(ESED  BFERAE
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional W BR e o SR AR AT RE R T BE A 21 E)
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole BERER - AMERAEREEAR
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a REBEMERDERRDESE
current liability in its statement of financial position, as REAEBRALRE BEGER T
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to BB A A BPRIEE £ R 2R
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months #BRLT-BA-Blt R=ZF
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term “NE=ZA=+—8  REERT
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately & 5 R HA 38 5 946,790,000 7% T
HK$46,790,000 (2023: approximately HK$50,843,000) (ZB==% : £50,843,000587T)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated ERFEESUBRERIEARDE
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024. &
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEFXEHE

FEEERERAZBERBRELEERE
WIFERE  EMBRARRREEDR
ERHMFOEAREFER ZERRE
BUUREE AR

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

BXINFRRNRESE BRRED
BEX BOHFROJVHEEEURDE
7% o
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (cont'd)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
cash is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

Total bank borrowings (Note 23)
Lease liabilities (Note 17)

Less: time deposits at banks with AW =@ AN LRI ERRITERR
maturity over three months ek (Bt 21)
(Note 21)

Net debt/(cash) B8 (RE) FH

Total equity R

Gearing ratio EEaE=x

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a net cash position.
Gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s properties held for own use classified under
property, plant and equipment are carried at fair value.
Details of the fair value measurement of these properties
held for own use are disclosed in Note 16.

3

RIRITE TR (PR 23)
HESE(HE17)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) i : & RIRESZEEY (MEE21)

B 75 [ B B B ()

3.2

3.3

EXEE (H)
REERBEEEBLLRERHER
ML IR T & 1T 38 — ARIEUK o BLE RIZE
HFRERUERBETE - BEFHEA
LAEEMEEaERRERREEE
M E - ERBREBRGESMBMRRF
Bz [#EE | o L EEFEAE o

2024 2023
i1t S —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
58,602 63,969
38,824 37,603
(57,377) (123,296)
(30,309) (23,365)
9,740 (45,089)
495,493 496,715
2.0% N/A

R-ZBZ=F=ZA=+—H0 KXEEZ2
BRI - MEESBELRILTER -

Do EME

HRAEETREE (D) (BfEE
WERR - ERRERREMERR &
NEEURRERBESEEY)  REX&
BeReE(ERENRARAEMEN
FoERNEE - TTEEREERERR
EEREIE  HARERAREERS

REBDERME BERREBZEFE
BRYMEXRANESR ZEHFEEH
MEAREFBZFH BRI 16KE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D) 3 B

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont'd) 3.3
The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2024 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2023:

Level 1
%-FE
HK$'000
TER
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=%=RA=1-H
Financial liabilities TRAE
Foreign exchange forward contracts NEERBHEH
— not qualified for hedge accounting ~ — FHAEHRERL FET -

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 March 2023.
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B EE @)

DA (&)
AEBZRARE D E 2 R ERM AT
RBABBHER FER-ZF-DF
ZAZt+—HARAREIRZEMIA
ZARME - BERBARBIRT Xl
MoEBADAERBRAN=ERER

o HMREEFEEERRERTSEN
HE(RERE) (B18) -

e BRTIFI1BFEENBREN  ZE
EREENTEENBARE - o
AEZE(BFINER) HEE (VR
BERK) (E28) -

o EBEFEBEAFRBUBETSH
BH@ABB(MRTBEEHAR
BIE3RE) °

TRENAEER-_ZFT-=F=A
S+ -BRANESIRZEMTIA :

Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TERr TET

223 - 223

BE-ZE-_=ZF=-A=+t—HLFER

TEEEMARBEFENE—"RBREZ
fE 2 e -



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

E-PN-BRrE5E]

REBERBIBELR R i EETE G5
Ry BEEREBAEZRRTHARRSE
2B o

FEBHRARELGERRBRR - IEHSEE
FRAEREBLOREBRERMER - HEER
BERT—EMRFEZRAEEXNEARARE
Rz EET REBRRAT ©

41 BREERE
RREBERBHEEEMERESEN
TEESTEEFERE BLHEEERK -
BREEABIREMEZ  THEBEE
ZEEEEEGEEEE BB
BFERERAREKBREPZENEET
TR HE RS o B EEAR G
BEE HEERFEMATHRELRSE
BFERAZEFE 2 REEKBRERE -

42 BUERIREURBERRENEERE
e
AEBERENERRERBEZNR
RABURARERRERRENEE
EHBERE ARERBEASENE
LENR -BATSRAREREDR
HURTRE MRS EAAEFEHZERR
MEEBERESENGARE - BHEE
BENMETTHEEAHE RS - 78
HEFRMET IR FRZHESTERE
W R YRR (B I fh 5T 2 B AR Y
FEW R IEREEE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of properties held for own use

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of properties held for own use performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the properties held for own
use may be different and thus may have an impact to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods EmiHE
Contract revenue BRI
Timing of revenue recognition: W TR
— At a point in time — R —EE R
— Over time — BERE R

4

BARE R HE @

4.5

Frigst

fief 18 T B2 AR SR B ER B0 38 I UK 85 7T B
RABEERE  AIELEREREESRE
RBARBEBEER - BEA THER
EEMEHEEBEFTEEEEFLHE
BHE > TERBIESEM - RRERB
EARARRBRBELZHERBEEE - AKH
EHEMNEEE MG BERATEE
BARRERBURF] - B v U = 3R IE Fir
BHEE  BISBIBMNELFREHRE
=

AEEEAEEBRDBEBMAES - R
BERSHBERAFHERHE - X
EXGRAEGEEIBRERKAED -
HZEEHEZBRBBERBRIN &K
TR AAMESESTYEELE
BORE 2 B 2 AT 1S B I R A T 15354 8%
&

2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx T
405,658 381,020
54,190 73,744
459,848 454,764
405,658 381,020
54,190 73,744
459,848 454,764
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 HulA
2024 2023
—E-E —EB-=5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
Government subsidy AT REES - 34
Others Hity 1,291 748
1,291 782
7  OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 HM(EE) W FE
2024 2023
—E - —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Net foreign exchange loss ELEE - FH

— Forward contracts — EEAY (1,157) (3,269)
— Other exchange gain — HMER ks 176 1,906

Impairment loss on properties held FERRYEZRERE
for own use 2,107) (1,304)
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2019 BARFESHAEBEESER - 3,670
(3,088) 1,003
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture, interior design services, project
and contract management

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, time deposits
with maturity over three months, derivatives financial assets,
cash and cash equivalents and property, plant and equipment
related to the office premises and warehouse of the Group
and other corporate assets which are managed on a central
basis and are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are managed on a central basis and
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

7 EE

RRABDMTEZE(HTES ) AFEBEZEE
EERRE EEECRBITESHIEE
BERAERRMEN 2 ERBELSE D -

AEEZUERELDHOT ¢

— BEEIT FARBRHEMIB —E
A HBERTERERS  FEARBR
Hft

— BEREBREMDE — K& EQ - HE
B ZERZEOERBREM  EAX
RETRYE - RERAHNERE

FEEAREEBMBRELENFESHRH/ED
MEEZERER  ERBEEBYBREER
RRAGRAVBRRGARAZBER -

BITESRESANAEFEEEIBHX
B ARYTESTHEHEMEBEE WS
KAXER  HEMKERERAXTEIE

N
EEEDE -

DHEEREMBEE  ENEETRE AR
W - BEFFEHEE B ABB=EA
NEREFR - TEEMEE  -RERRESEE
- BAKENEZENERRERENY
¥ BERRBURHMGEEE  ZSEE
WEHEE  ANFEERBREAEEDH
ZEEER -

ITHEERERERE  ENBEANREL
FEHaE ERRABEXEE  ZE8E
WEHERE  AXFEEEBREAEEDE
ZEEER -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D)

Reportable segment revenue from
external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provision for inventory
obsolescence

Finance income

Finance costs

Net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities
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AER BT F 5 EkE

AEH 5 EHHERA

AEHKz D EHEF

M BERRBITE

EREEENE
BEFERE

B TVON

MBER

ERMRENEEZ
ERIEESE PR

AEH 2T HEE

FERNFRBOBEE
ZRE

AEH 2O BEE

4= A
w3

B A5 SR AR B &

8 oHER @

2024
—T-mF
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERE - BERE
EaREREM RARA #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FHT
349,943 109,905 459,848
(211,238) (69,400) (280,638)
138,705 40,505 179,210
(5,833) (3,477) 9,310)
(17,443) (15,237) (32,680)
434) (299) (733)
1,903 21 1,924
(3,272) (2,267) (5,539)
(1,161) (34) (1,195)
290,676 100,783 391,459
829 8,812 9,641
87,671 74,035 161,706




SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

Reportable segment revenue from
external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Provision for)/reversal of provision
for inventory obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs
Net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

AEH 2 EIIEF D H WS

A E 2 2 &P E R A

AEHR 22 HER

¥ BERREITE

EREEERE
BRFE (BR) BERE

EILON

BMBER

ERMRENEEZ
BEE R

AEH 2T HEE

FERAFRBIBEE
ZRE

AJEH o HEE

8 IHER@E

2023
—E=F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERE - BEHE
EAREREAM AR HE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
314,574 140,190 454,764
(204,854) (69,304) (274,158)
109,720 70,886 180,606
(6,140) (4,514) (10,654)
(17,904) (12,176) (30,080)
(4,101) 836 (3,265)
1,854 32 1,886
(1,900) (1,592) (3,492)
(2,401) (30) (2,431)
321,838 71,923 393,761
554 7,152 7,706
110,322 73,122 183,444
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

The table presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

DEBE R (@)

FEEREIMEALEBRESUBBR2ETE
M BEHRMNT R

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit AEH 22 HBEF
Group gross profit £EEER
Reportable segment assets AEH T HEE

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Current income tax recoverable

Time deposits with maturity over
three months

e )
EEFRSHERE
AW EIA RS

IBMABB=EANEHER

Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY
Derivative financial assets TTEERERE
Other corporate assets Hito¥EE
Group assets EEEE
Reportable segment liabilities TEHzOBEE
Borrowings CEN

Current income tax liabilities KSR AE
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEFEHEE
Other corporate liabilities Hit bk B E
Group liabilities KEAE
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2024 2023
—TMmEF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

179,210 180,606
179,210 180,606
391,459 393,761
221,805 190,909

5,325 5,352

4,394 3,183

30,309 23,365
57,377 123,296
- 223

426 484
711,095 740,573
161,706 183,444
33,736 37,501
5,113 5,167
14,500 17,201
547 545
215,602 243,858




8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

Geographical information

DEBER (@)

REZIIHNER

Revenue from external

Non-current assets

(excluding financial assets
and deferred income tax

customers assets)

IRBEE(TEETMEE

HNE Bz RIEZEFREREE)
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-NE —E=-= —E-NE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHERT FET
Hong Kong (domicile) BB (TELEME) 429,150 436,198 319,864 337,310
PRC ==} 30,698 18,566 292 624
Total st 459,848 454,764 320,156 337,934

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is no single
customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2023:
same).

EFHEVERBEXNEMMAEMEME - 3F
RBEECHEBNERREZEECERNE

MiE e

BE-_Z-_WNE=ZA=+—HLFE HES
— B EAEBREBBI0%(ZE==

HE) e
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories (Note 19)

Provision for inventory obsolescence,
included cost of sales

Other direct costs, included in cost
of sales

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset
(Note 17)

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(Note 17)

Legal and professional expenses

Building management fee

Electricity and water

Bank charges

Entertainment

Government rent and rates

Transportation

Storage charges

Printing and stationary

Travelling

Other expenses
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REMBRERWE
9 BAXME
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET
ETIRAZE (MEE11) 67,712 69,103
BEMME
— ZEAR 1,760 1,760
— BT 216 195
FERHA (FiEE19) 265,550 253,061
BEFERE GTAHERR)
733 3,265
Hth BZRA (G AHERA)
14,355 17,832
M MERBEITE (M 16)
20,128 19,103
ERAEEETE (M&17)
32,680 30,080
SEHEARER R (MEE17)
442 154
EEREERMAX 2,587 3,919
EFEEEH 2,447 2,124
BERKE 1,438 1,308
RITEA 1,681 2,409
FERE 2,206 2,290
BT A& =8 1,942 1,504
RBEE 4,738 4,341
ERHE 7,275 6,080
ENal & L & 1,261 2,134
EiRE 838 531
Hihp % 12,390 14,650
442,379 435,843




10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Note 17)

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowances, including
directors’ emoluments

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations

Government grant (Note)

Note:

10 BIHER F5

MBER
RITERFEFX
HEEERNSHZ (ME17)

Lk T ON
RATF B WA

MBER - FHE

11

FERRM  BREESHE

BAEHA — RERRETE

EERNETEHHE

BT RE (MEEE)

The government grant recognised in employee benefit expenses of
HK$2,951,000 mainly represents the employment support scheme paid by
Hong Kong Government during the year ended 31 March 2023.

2024 2023
—E_ME —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
3,533 1,919
2,006 1,573
5,539 3,492
(1,924) (1,886)
3,615 1,606
ETREAMXZH

2024 2023
o 11123 —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FExT
66,905 68,652
2,046 2,381
(1,239) 1,021
- (2,951)

67,712 69,103

BEE -

B85 2,951,000 B TAMEERABXRRE  T2AF
BHARBE_Z-=F=F=1t—-HALEEXFHR

BT -
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 ESECEARESERAEERSHMN

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS Ax
(@) Directors’ remuneration @ EFZHH
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to ENRENRLTESHERENT
the directors of the Company are as follows:
2024 —E-mE
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Discretionary henefit
fees Salaries honuses scheme Total
BIER
Eig 4
EEfig e KB FE e @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx T T TR TiEn
Executive directors HITESE
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) BEE (EE) 100 3,044 - - 3,144
TSE Sun Wai, Albert B 100 4,619 - - 4719
TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) #i#78 (254 &) 100 4,253 - 12 4,365
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin R 100 3,810 - 18 3,928
LAU Shiu Sun el 100 1,975 - 18 2,093
Independent non-executive directors B E#HITES
WONG Wah, Dominic = 188 - - - 188
WAN Sze Chung BER 188 - - - 188
LUK Wang Kwong BRE 188 - - - 188
1,064 17,701 - 48 18,813
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNnT'D)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont'd)

2023

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

LUK Wang Kwong

BTES

B (EF)
B E

HHE (EERKE)
HE

BB

HITES

\,

.

S oo i ke

i OBs B
&

12

BEECRANEZROLBERS FHHM
Ax @@

(@ EEZHHGE

—EB-=5F

Employer's

contribution

to retirement

Directors’ Discretionary benefit
fees Salaries honuses scheme Total

BINER

ftalz
Yok ¢ BiEta BTN b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TiEn TR Tin TEn
100 2,473 - - 2,573
100 4,048 - - 4,148
100 3,582 - 18 3,700
100 2,987 - 18 3,105
100 1,633 - 18 1,751
108 - - - 108
108 - - - 108
108 - - - 108
824 14723 - 54 15,601

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024

(2023: Nil).

BE-_Z-_NE=A=+—-HLFE"
THEEENRIBIRRNEZME (=
BI=F )
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

0]

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2024, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 30, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).
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e BRI

EECvRAREZERIZRSHM
AL @@

(b)

(0

(d

(e)

®

EE 2 RAFIE R ERAER
FR - BEEEC RIS REBUEMER
AFEHBBERN (ZB-=F 1 ) -

BRERUESRBmMAETE=FRE

REBZE-Z_NE=A=1+—HILEE
AEBYERTAE=FREZSZRE
MEAESARE(ZZE==F : §&) -

FREOES  SZEESRHNEAR
BrZSESVRETRERNER
HUEREEMZZWER
MR-ZZE-_WNFE=ZA=+—0 TEGHE
T BREESEHNEABBRZE
FEPEETRREMRENER  BLUE
NREMRZ (ZBE=F : §)

BEEEXRS  REASHNERER

BRRME30RBEN  AFEERARFEH
B ARBWEBITEMEAEEER
HEMALNDESHENBREELPE
FEAERCEERS - THMNEQ -

BREEAS
FEERBITESIEREEAE -
XN TFRENHESFHBEERNE ()8 -



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNnT'D)

(®

Five highest paid individuals

12

(@

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2023: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to
the five highest paid individuals during the year are as

follows:

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

FE KRR,
RAERA — REM-KEE

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

FHMAE R (BT)

2,500,001 /& 7t £ 3,000,000 /& 7T
3,000,001 % 7T E 3,500,000 /& T
3,500,001 & 7t £ 4,000,000 & JT
4,000,001 /& Jt & 4,500,000 & 7T
4,500,001 7& 7t & 5,000,000 /& T

BEECRANEZROLBERS FHHM
Ax @@

LEREFMAL
FAXEEZLERSFHALEEN
N(ZEBEZ=ZF M) ES HE5He
EHHR LI RZAMA - FREX
TREZNFRERZSEHMNA L =2 5
mT

2024 2023

—E-mE —z-=f

HK$’000 HK$'000

FT FT

19,695 16,038

48 54

19,743 16,092
BENFLUATEE :

Number of individuals

AH
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=HF
- 2
1 1
2 1
1 1
1 _
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FiBBiMxX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BRNEB I UARFE MG ERBUBAIRH R
(2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (ZEB == : 16.5%) TR EHH - KK
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group FE ARETEWEARDNEARER25%
is 25% (2023: 25%) for the year. (ZBZ=%F :125%) °
2024 2023
—E-OEF —E==
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FiET
Current tax ENEABTE
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH 3,824 3,116
PRC corporate income tax B ETER 12 153
Total current tax BVEARS 1B 4258 3,836 3,269
Deferred taxation (Note 25) JEFEBLIE (MEE25) (1,517) (673)
Income tax expense FrEHEx 2,319 2,596
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the AEERRBRBIEMN SR 2 HERBERAE
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax EEEERMENRE AR EMTE 2 ER
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows: BEEEZR2UT ¢
Group
FEE
2024 2023
—E-@EF —E==
HK$’000 HK$"000
TET FiET
Profit before income tax BrFr B R AEF] 10,862 16,669
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZAERt EERE AN
applicable to profits in the B R E L IE
respective region 1,300 909
Effect of tax reduction in current year REERER DK E (33) (70)
Income not subject to tax BAZRBBA (840) (984)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes RE %15 % 1,075 335
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B fBERERFIALRE
tax losses (494) (14)
Unrecognised tax losses RERIEEE 304 2,420
Under provision in prior years BEFERERR 1,007 -
Income tax expense FEHEX 2,319 2,596
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14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE

(@ Dividends declared and paid during the year @ REFESRERREZRE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Final dividend in respect of 2023 of —ECZFREREER
HK$0.5 cents (2023: in respect of 058 (ZZB==%F:
2022 of HK$1 cent) per share TECFZRERE
R 1EM) 3,594 6,006
(b) Dividends for the year b) FERS
2024 2023
—E-NE —ET=F
HK$'000 HK$"000
FET FiBx
Proposed final dividend of Nil BRKREREERT B
(2023: HK$0.5 cents) per share (ZZB==%:0.5%1L) - 3,594
15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 BRER
(@ Basic earnings per share (@ BRERGR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BREZBNIRIBEADTRE EER
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by WAL B EERRTENZEZEBR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares MEFHEHE (RERNERITZERKY
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus AFELTE) o

elements in ordinary shares issued during the years.

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK cents HK cents
b= Al
Basic earnings per share attributable &2 B A & EEERERER
to the owners of the Company 1.19 2.22
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREBELF

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March HALED BT EERETER W
2024 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there E-E-NE=ZA=+—HLEE>S
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued RS SAESREAERER (-2

(2023: same). —=F AR -
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (coNT'D) 15 SRER @
(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earning (0 BRETESRERAEREHER
per share
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Basic earnings per share BREAREF
Profit attributable to the owners ARG ESREAZRET
of the Company used in calculating ANA TS & FEAERF
basic earnings per share 8,543 14,073
2024 2023
—E_NEF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Diluted earnings per share BR#EEF
Profit attributable to the owners ARTESREEENN
of the Company used in calculating AN B A & LR
diluted earnings per share 8,543 14,073
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the d) AEIBHNRGMETLITH
denominator
2024 2023
—E-mE —EB-=F
Number of Number of
shares shares
R E RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary FB{EstEEREA R #8558
shares and potential ordinary Mo BNEBRIETEBER
shares used as the denominator in DnRESE 9 2 ()
calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share (Note) 718,838,942 632,838,238
Note: FfEE -
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March BE-_Z-=F=A=+-BLFENSRER
2023 have been restated to take into account the effects of the bonus RESERFCEIUNRAATANR - E-_=F—
element in ordinary shares issued as a result of the rights issue of the B 55 AR B9 1 AR Y O B 4T 1 AR MO AT BT 3 AR Y 82
Company completed in January 2023. o
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Net book value

At 31 March 2022
Additions
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2023
Additions
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

At 31 March 2024
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BREFE

RZBZZH=ZA=+—8H

wnE

e (MEE9)
ERr]
ERER

R-ZBZ=F=ZA=1—H

N

e (B 9)
Efh
ERER

R-E_MFE=A=+—H

R-BZ=F=ZA=+-—H

fhiE
A
REHTE

BRENFE

R-EBE-_ME=A=+—H

fh{E
B AR
[EHTE

BREFE

16 W% BERSE

Properties
held for Furniture,

ownuse Leasehold fixtures and Motor

(Note) improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BERRME B %E

()  AEMEKE e - @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TR TAT TER TR
253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162
48,147 8,416 172 - 56,735
(10,321) (8,289) (439) (54) (19,103)
(4,726) - - - (4,726)
- (21) (15) - (36)
286,800 14,146 1,086 - 302,032
- 10,426 169 - 10,595
(12,117) (7,565) (446) - (20,128)
(9,683) - - - (9,683)
- - () - )
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
286,800 - - - 286,800
- 92,512 20,854 1,091 114,457
- (78,366) (19,768) (1,091) (99,225)
286,800 14,146 1,086 - 302,032
265,000 . - - 265,000
- 102,951 20,980 1,091 125,022
- 85944  (20,175) (1,091)  (107,210)
265,000 17,007 805 - 282,812
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

Note:

If properties held for own use were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

Cost A
Accumulated depreciation REHE
Net book amount SRMEFE

Bank borrowings are secured by the properties held for own use in Hong
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$160,500,000 (2023:
approximately HK$200,200,000) (Note 23).

The following table analyses the properties held for own use
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Description B

As at 31 March 2024 REZZF-MFE=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements  &EM QA AEHE
— Properties held for own use — HEB AW

As at 31 March 2023 R=—Z=-—=F=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements  &EM QA EF &
— Properties held for own use — BEERME

Note:

For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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16 Y% - BENRE @

MRE -

i EE BMEDRELRAEEZS] - BRESHENT ¢

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
191,412 191,412
(19,956) (15,366)
171,456 176,046

RITHERULIREEL 160,500,000 BT (ZFE==4F:
#200,200,000 8 70) 2 & BIHEB AV EERT (M
23) ¢

TRUGEZEDTRDABIIRZIFEEBY
¥ o

Fair value measurements using
RATHREZARBETE

Quoted

prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HEEER BEARHM EARFH
TER™S AEE BEBARE
ZE BWARE (B=E)
(8—18) (8=/8) (MH=E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
- - 265,000
- — 286,800

M

BEZBBETZANEFENS  EEREBEZHAH
BAXFUAEETSHE (DT TBERARE) HEH -



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16 Y% - BERRE @

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers FAEEZERARNHRBRAANERER2EE
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or BeEMHREREBDER  BRERANERE
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were FeBAREH -FR BB F-BRS
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. ZEBELEER -

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable MAERTABEGAHE (F=E) 22 nE
inputs (Level 3) FTE

Properties held for own use

FEERME
2024 2023
—EZNE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Opening balance FE R 286,800 253,700
Addition NE - 48,147
Depreciation e (12,117) (10,321)
Impairment loss on properties FEBERAMENRERE
held for own use (2,107) (1,304)
Loss on revaluation recognised REMEZERREERZ
in other comprehensive income EHEE (7,576) (3,422)
Closing balance FHREERR 265,000 286,800
Valuation processes of the Group AREEZHER
The Group’s properties held for own use was valued at 31 AEBZFEEANREBLSERMGENE
March 2024 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus MEANFMITERAAR-Z-_NEF=A
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant =+—BETHE EEMSEEERTE
professional qualification and has recent experience in the RER BRAROENISEERYEMEH
locations and segments of the properties held for own use BERAIGETHENCR(ZS==F : @)
valued (2023: same).
The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews FEBYBINEBE -ZHUBREENENE
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for ML ERMPTETAE B - ZEREEEE
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the EQER - HEERESFEGEMTREER
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and BRER-
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16

Valuation processes of the Group (cont’d)

Level 3 fair values of properties held for own use have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market

unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
FTAERBARE

Market unit rate
MSEER

Range of unobservable inputs
TABERARBEE

Office: HK$15,900 to HK$16,100 (2023:
HK$17,500 to HK$17,600) per square feet
of saleable area

BFE BERAEESFHERI5900E7TE16,100
BT (ZEZ=%F :17,500/8T&E 17,6008 7T)

Shop: HK$64,400 (2023: HK$73,600) per
square feet of saleable area

B BRAERESFHIR644008T(ZF=
% :73,60087T)

Warehouse: HK$3,300 (2023: HK$3,400)
per square feet of saleable area

&R ERAERSFAIR300BT(ZE==
£ 13,4008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the

year (2023: same).
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REBEZHERE (&)
FEERANFXcE=EARENERERELR
EEH  EEEBUE-RAMAMEETS LTS
Bz B BHERZEBMEQE - BiE
HWERELRNXCEECHISZ R - W%
HERMBRETERHH 2 ZREHBE - I
BEEZRERBABBEATSEEER -

FRANRAEATABRGARE (=) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DAEASRIIBRGARE ZBE

The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
SEEEEME - AR EEE

FRGELEHRERZE (CT-=F : @@) -



17 LEASES 17 #HE

This note provides information for leases where the Group is AHERHAREERABAZAEES -
a lessee.
(@ Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (@ RESHBRERABRIZSHE
financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows FEMBMRRARIRUTREEREREZ
the following balances relating to the leases: REER
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties L/ES 37,344 35,902
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current b 19,406 29,143
Non-current FRE 19,418 8,460
38,824 37,603
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended BE_Z_NE=A=+-HLFE"
31 March 2024 amounted to approximately NEEAEEELN35339,0008T (=%
HK$35,339,000 (2023: approximately HK$21,490,000). — =% : #21,490,00055 ) °
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (b) REEZERERABIZSE
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income FEERHWERITUTREERE 2
shows the following amounts relating to the leases: X L
2024 2023
—E_-_mE B =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiBx
Depreciation charge of right-of-use EREEEZITERS (ME9)
assets (Note 9) 32,680 30,080
Expenses relating to short-term BEEEHEE 2B (M)
leases (Note 9) 442 154
Interest expense (Note 10) FEBIX (iEE10) 2,006 1,573
The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31 BE-—E-_NME=A=+—-HILLEE
March 2024 amounted to approximately HEZHBEHRENH35512,000E T
HK$35,512,000 (2023: approximately HK$28,855,000). (ZE==% :#28,855,0008 ) °
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17 LEASES (cONT'D)

1

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for

The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms

are between one to six years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that

are held by the lessor.

18 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

1

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 March 2024 and

2023:
Place of
incorporation/  Particulars of issued
Name of subsidiary establishment  share capital
WEARZE /RIS BROREHE
Accord Sky Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares
Accord Sky Limited s 1,000,000 B & B

Asia Bon Company Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares

EREN EEERERAT BB 100 REER

Asia Richly Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share

DHEEERAT BB 1REER

Bonco Ironmongery Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares

RELEEHBRLA BE 10000 REER

Cypress Design Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share

MRRTERAE B 1REER

D.LY. Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares

D.LY. Limited B VREER

E. Bon Building Materials Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares
Company Limited

A TREMNERAT B 6,000 REBR
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Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited liabilities
BREELT
Company with limited liabilities

BRELLT

Company with limited liabilities

BREELT
Company with limited liabilities
ARERLT
Company with limited liabilities
BREEAF

Company with limited liabilities

ARERLT

Company with limited liabilities

ARERAA

7

(==}

e BRI

HE @

(o)

FEBZHEEDREARAR

FEEMERZENE  ETEEZTERE
W ERRBFEUE BHENTF-—=
NE o

HHMZERNEEREY  UBSEETE
ZARFR R AR o 18 B 1 A A B T
L ERHBEARBEZHEEEF 2
HARREZR RN

B Rl #E 5

UTFAR-ZE_NFEFR_E_=F=A=1+—
BZzHMBARRE :

Equity interest held

R RARE Principal activities and
2024 2023 place of operation
CBIME  ZETCZE IEEBREERE
100% 100%  Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong
EEREENEERERERRER
Rk
100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
RERENEEE
100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENEEE
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware in Hong Kong
REBENRHAERERS
100% 100%  Consulting services for interior design
and fitting out works
EWRTREB TR 2R
100% 100%  Handling of human resources
planning and development
activities of the Group
EEASBANEFRIRERSE
100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural

builders” hardware and bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

REBENRHERERERAAR
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cONT'D)

Name of subsidiary

KEATER

H20 (Pro) Limited
K2RERLT
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
BZRERAT

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

X2 (BB)ERAR

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

XE (LB n2ERAR

Oriental Forward Limited

RAKERRLT

Oriental Longway Limited
RARERRAT

Right Century Limited

BHERAE

Leader New Limited

HERRLE

Shanghai Tech Pro International
Trading Company Limited*

LESREKESERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

M/ R
Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong
Ei8

Hong Kong

R

PRC

HE

Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

A

PRC

P

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRIRAGFE

2 ordinary shares
1REER

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REER

10,000 orclinary shares

10,000 REBR

US$$250,000

250,000 %70

1 ordinary share

1REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 REER

1 ordinary share

1REBR

US§300,000

300,000 % T

18 MiIBATEE®E

Legal structure
EEER

Company with limited liabilities

BREFAT

all

Company with limited liabilities

BREEAH

all

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

RHELE

Company with limited liabilities

BREEAT

Company with limited liabilities

BREMRLT
Company with limited liabilities

BREFAT

Company with limited liabilities

BREEAT

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2HEnE

Equity interest held

FERTER
2024 2023
—E-mME ZB-ZE
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

IEEBRERDA

Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

REBEDREEHARE

Importing, sale and installation of
kitchen collections in Hong Kong

REBED  HERZEBRERR

Supply of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections
for property development
in Hong Kong

REEMEREREREARETNE
BREE

Supplying architectural builders'
hardware and bathroom collections

for property development in Shanghai
RESHERERSREARRET
PES:2:E

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENERR

Property holding in Hong Kong
RERENRSIE

Retail sales of bathroom accessories
and decoration materials through

retail shops in Hong Kong
ERTEENERREEEHARS
REHHH

Property holding in Hong Kong
RERENERE

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC

RPEENRBERETSREARE
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18 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conT'D) 18 MEA R E

Place of Equity interest held
incorporation/  Particulars of issued figien 3+ Principal activities and

Name of subsidiary establishment  share capital Legal structure 2024 2023 place of operation

WEAREE H/RUeY BRIRAFE EERE CBImE ZECDE ZEERREEBE

Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMB5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Undertaking interior decoration and

Decoration Company Limited* project management for property

development in the PRC

LEEREREHERAR  HE ARH 5,000,000 78 RHEL% RAERAEREEREREERET
NERREE

Sunny Building and Decoration - Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders

Materials Company Limited hardware and bathroom collections

through retail shops in Hong Kong

FHESHHESTIRERAR &6 6,000 REER BRELLT ERTEENERTEHERERS
REARE

Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware

BREMNEZARLT 3 1000 REBR AREMRAT ENRHERELS

ViA Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Investment holding

ViA Asia Pacific Limited &2 1REER BREELH REER

VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
and kitchen collections in Shanghai

2R (LB ZAFHEERAT HE 250,000%7 |53 REBENRHEGE  FAR
BRERE

Joy Fly Limited# Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 60% N/A~ Importing and sale of kitchen collection

ARBERAR: B 10BEER ARRALT TER  ENREEEERE

* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent * HALRETFHBRARDLEEZRALERE B

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

# The financial information of the subsidiary that has non-controlling

interests are not material to the Group.
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INVENTORIES

Finished goods B

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$265,550,000
(2023: approximately HK$253,061,000).

As at 31 March 2024, finished goods with cost of
approximately HK$35,020,000 (2023: approximately
HK$34,490,000) were considered as obsolete.

The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is
as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year ER G
Provision for inventory obsolescence BEFERE
Exchange difference ERER
Balance at end of the year FRE®R

19

2024 2023
—EonF —E-=%
HK$/000 HK$’000
FTERT THET
169,712 144,909

BRABIZATATHEHERNER ] 2FEXENE
265,550,000 T (ZEZ=4F : £253,061,000
BIT) ©

RIZZE_MNFE=A=+—H0 BREERBZK
AR # £35,020,0008 t(ZEZ=ZF: 8

34,490,000 7T) ©

BEFEREZHNOT :

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHExT
34,490 31,643
733 3,265
(203) (418)
35,020 34,490
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CONTRACT ASSETS

20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Contract assets
Less: provision for impairment of
contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits

Current portion

FE U BR X
B W ARFOR(E R

FEUs £R B8 3R
B AR E SR E R E

BREE
B ANEERERRE

HfFE sk

W SEENERER
FEURIR BB X
Be

BN RR

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

end of the respective reporting dates.
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@LBZFE/TA @WR%TA

REEHNEE

Hftb B R

REZB-ZNER_ZB-=F=A=+—-H2E
WER - BBRE N - Htb WA R ENEE

HEMT :
2024 2023
—EMF —E-=
HK$/000 HK$’000
FER FET
96,532 71,605
(1,886) (1,118)
94,646 70,487
1,147 1,435
(274) (264)
95,519 71,658
3,870 3,284
(33) (15)
99,356 74,927
24,466 27,384
123,822 102,311
32) (367)
(4,808) 4,377)
118,982 97,567

FrAsRENEE 0 2 R A N B E B A RE

FTREREIE -



20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

20
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0E90K
91-365 days 91 E 365K
Over 365 days BB 365K

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade, retention receivables and contract
assets. Information about the impairment of these receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is set out in Note
3.1(c).

The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year E
Loss allowance for the year FREERE
Written-off 5
Exchange difference ER=R
Balance at end of the year FREEH

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2023: same).

BUERM - BRAREBR - HbEWK
MREHNEE®@®

FEWBRRARE A 2R (UBEASTE) 2

W

2024 2023

—E-mE —EBo=5F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

62,458 31,311

14,730 25,270

19,344 15,024

96,532 71,605

REBZHEEENARIMBITHB30EI0K M
BOEFNEENIRBERERZ 120K

REE MBI B REERERBLIETT
ERBEERE  HAMARYIRNK - BURE
BURENEEERZPRBEERE - AH
ZERYE IEHE&$¢IT‘§HB?E’J§H%Z
RMIEE3.1(c

FEWER - BRURBRRENEEZABEER
BEBHEEBNOT

2024 2023
—ECNE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FERT
1,397 1,153
1,195 2,431
(488) (2,169)
89 (18)

2,193 1,397

RIBE-_WOE=F=+—
WKz REEEEAR ﬁ$
R o

 FEWAR R At
H(ZEZD=F:
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20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount
billed to the customer.

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS AT BANKS

Cash at bank and on hand
Time deposits at banks with maturity
over three months

ROTFRRFERE

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$3,574,000 (2023: approximately
HK$1,497,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

The deposits at banks carry interest at mark rates which range
from 3.22% to 4.53% (2023: 0.20% to 4.95%) per annum.
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BEEHIRNENEE

20

21

e BRI

FEWERER - EWRE R - HAaEW
RREHNEE @
BHEEFHBOT :
2024 2023
—E-MEFE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
3,870 3,284

BHEEERCERANEBBATFRHRE
MEBRNENIREENRERESHE -

BeRkASEEYUARRITERE

=h
TA

=8 AL ERIHHRITEMEFR

2024 2023
—E-mE ===
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET FHET
57,377 123,296
30,309 23,365
87,686 146,661

RZEBE_WNFE=A=+—0 FEEZREK
RITHER23,574,0008 T (ZBEZ=F : &
1,497,000 7T) EFAFE 2 R1T - BRI I
ERGIES o

RITERIRENR3I%E453%(ZE==
F10.20%E4.95%) 58 o



22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Accrued charges and other payables
Contract liabilities

Employee benefit obligations

Less: non-current portion
Employee benefit obligations

Current portion

FEAS BRAX

Bt ERAREAEAR
BREE
BERMNEE

i IR
BERMNEE

BN #R

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date

by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days
91-365 days
Over 365 days

0ZE90KX
91 E365K
HiB 365K

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2023: same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

AENEFEEHNAE

22 ENRRREGENRRENEE

2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx FBT
25,724 29,854
5,253 13,400
62,804 70,643
4,782 6,021
98,563 119,918
(4,782) (6,021)
93,781 113,897

FESRRFAIRE B 2 iRl (AR R RAFE) 247

mE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEx
19,156 22,022
3,156 4,074
3,412 3,758
25,724 29,854
RIEBE_WE=F=+—H  EFERIREM
BAZzREEREARERE (ZE=F
HE) °
EHNEEHFBOT :
2024 2023
—E-EF —EC-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
62,804 70,643
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B A5 SR AR B &

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 ERfBRRRHEMESRRENEE

LIABILITIES (coNT'D) (&)
Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an EHEBERERERAEFEENEEME R
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for goals EFNRE (RABRESHE) -

that have not yet been transferred to the customers.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue TRETHAESHABERNABREHRET
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to Rk T

carried-forward contract liabilities:

2024 2023
—E-ME —EB=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FiBT
Revenue recognised that was included st AENAHNEEHEHHTERWE
in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year 54,326 71,024
23 BORROWINGS 23 &
2024 2023
—E-NE —EB=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FBx
Current BN
— Bank borrowings — mortgage loans ~ — {75 — RIBERK 51,320 55,492
— Bank borrowings — trust receipt loans — R{7{&5% — SEWIEER 7,282 8,477
58,602 63,969
Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR ERBBERZEFEERETRRBIIME(Z
(2023: same). All mortgage loans are denominated in HK$ E-=F R IERBERZHESY
(2023: same). ABRT(ZZE=F HRA) -
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23 BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second year BERN

In the third to fifth year F=ZFEZELER
Over fifth year BBERF

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$51,320,000 (2023:
approximately HK$55,492,000) are secured by properties
held for own use of the Group of approximately
HK$160,500,000 (2023: approximately HK$200,200,000)
(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating
rates, equals their carrying amounts.

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

FBRE :
— — R

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

The effective interest rate is 5.8% per annum (2023: 3.6% per
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the banking facilities were secured by
the following:

(i)  Corporate guarantee provided by the Company; and
(ii)  Certains properties held for own used in Hong Kong
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its

borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

B (&)

R-E-_MER-_E-_=#=A=+—H K
EEEARBENERPREEZMERMOT

2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
11,812 13,126
4,703 4,791
15,803 15,243
26,284 30,809
58,602 63,969

RITERA51,320,000 B T (ZEZ=F: 4
55,492,000 Tt ) R A A K B A & Y
160,500,000 t( = & = = F: #®
200,200,000 70 ) Z3F1E B A Y FEAEIE T (I
F16) °

MAEFBHNEZERZANEEREKREE -

FEEBUTRBAZRESHE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FTHET
163,312 193,736

BE_Z-_ME=A=+—BLEEZERE
FEE58% (ZB=F : §F3.6%) °

REZBZWME=ZA=+—R RITBEUTSI
BIREER

(i) ALERHNAFVER KR

(i) REBETHEERYE

BEZE-NER-ZS-Z=F=A=+—H1t
FE  AEECETHEESE 2 MIERE -
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24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Not qualified for hedge accounting
Foreign exchange forward contract,
at market value (Note)

Note:

TREHTETER
SNEEHEH  EHE
(Bff&E)

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward

contracts as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

Sell HKD for EUR
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BHHETARE

24

TESRMEE
2024 2023
—E-mE ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FiET
- 223
o3 -

REB-=ZFZA=T-BERTRZIEEDRENZ

AEARESEEMT ¢

2024
—E-MF
HK$’000
THET

2023
—E-=F
HK$’000
FERT

21,415




25 DEFERRED TAXATION 25 RIEHIE

2024 2023
—EmE —EI=HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHExT
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTEFEE 5,325 5,352
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFFEFAas (14,500) (17,201)
9,175) (11,849)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and REEBEHRRE R EEERIEHE KA
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration REEZELEFEBHEERGERESZHN
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHERE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
BEEE REHERE B @i
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

“RCME CTCCF CZRCME CF--F O CRCME CFC-F O CFCME CFCCF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TERL TER TR TER TERL TER TER

At 1 April RMA—A 1,369 2,503 12,553 10,606 350 651 14,272 13,760
Credited/(charged) to profit 3 A/ ($18) B
or loss 220 (1,134) 997 1,947 47 (254) 1,264 559
Exchange difference EHER - - - - 93) (47) 93) (47)
At 31 March R=B=+-H 1,589 1,369 13,550 12,553 304 350 15,443 14,272
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHas
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEER MERERE st
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

—EC-NE ZB-=fF CZE-NFE CZE-=F CZBE-NE =—F-=F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRET TERT TR TERT TAERT

At 1 April REA—H 25,501 26,281 620 506 26,121 26,787
Credited to other comprehensive 5t AE b2 E Y5

income (1,250) (552) - - (1,250) (552)
(Credited)/charged to profit (3t A)/MBBH

or loss (345) (228) 92 114 (253) (114)
At 31 March R=B=+-H 23,906 25,501 712 620 24,618 26,121
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION (coNT'D) 25 EZEBIE (@)
As at 31 March 2024, the Group has not recognised deferred REZZF-ZMEF=A=+—0  AXEE{RER
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of FRRAFHEEIE 243480008 T(=F
approximately HK$24,348,000 (2023: approximately Z=F:1#22,127,0008 ) ZBEFFERE
HK$22,127,000) as it is not probable that future taxable B WIBEREEESEAiRERNERE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be BBME  REF KA MG ERER ALK
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These BIREE - ZEREBEZIHANT
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:
2024 2023
b 22 —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
In the first to fifth year inclusive E-FEEAFA(BREEEWSE) 24,348 22,127
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$351,000 R-B-ME=A=+—0  AEIHBELT
as at 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately HK$415,000) SRE BRI A FE 0B 2 B 4h B 18 e 508 3E FT
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other ERAEY3510008T(ZE=-=F: 4
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of 415,000587x) c R=—ZE-_MNFE=A=+—H"
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately FKERFESHNE7,022,00BT(ZE==
HK$7,022,000 at 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately F 1 #98,304,00087T) RANEBE W EITE R
HK$8,304,000), and the Group does not intend to remit these BHRE AR TEEMNB AT ZRERT o
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 KA
2024 2023
—E-NE —EC-CF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RH8E TERT RH#8A T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREBIBIZEEBR
At 1 April and 31 March REBE—BR=A=+-—8 1,000,000,000 100,000  1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CEITREHRA:
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREE0IBIZEER
At 1 April REA—H 718,838,942 71,884 600,600,000 60,060
Issuance of ordinary shares ERMEIRETEBR (EE)
upon rights issue (Note) - - 118,238,942 11,824
At 31 March R=A=+—8 718,838,942 71,884 718,838,942 71,884
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26

27

SHARE CAPITAL (coONT'D)
Note:

On 21 October 2022, the Company proposed to implement a right issue to
its shareholders a right issue its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of
150,150,000 shares at an issue price of HK$0.192 per share on the basis of
one share for every four existing shares held. A total of 118,238,942 rights
shares were fully subscribed. Proceeds of approximately HK$22,702,000
were received and the related transaction costs of approximately
HK$1,300,000 were netted off with the proceeds. These shares rank pari
passu in all respect with the then existing shares in issue. The excess over the
par value of the shares were credited to the share premium account.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

26

27
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@ Cash flows from operating activities

28 WEREER

(@ RETDELEZHER

=
LEE

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Profit before income tax BRFT B8R ADEF 10,862 16,669
Adjustments for: BTHIBIEFE
Finance costs B3 E 5,539 3,492
Finance income B URA (1,924) (1,886)
Impairment loss on properties BEE AMERERE
held for own use 2,107 1,304
Provision for inventory obsolescence  BiFE#E# 733 3,265
Net impairment losses on TRRENEEZHERSE
financial and contract assets SEEE 1,195 2,431
Loss on forward contracts EHAXER 1,157 3,269
Loss on lease modification S EmERE - (94)
Depreciation of property, M - MERRBITE
plant and equipment 20,128 19,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESENE 32,680 30,080
Remeasurements of employee BERANETEHE
benefit obligations (1,239) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2019 Bk B S HEHEEASEH - (3,670)
Operating profit before working LIEE BB 2 SEHRF
capital changes 71,238 73,963
Inventories =75 (25,843) (32,885)
Trade, retention and other receivables FEURBEER « FEUREEZ K
H th FE UL TR (22,821) 51,973
Contract assets BAHEE (704) 906
Trade and other payables and provision FE1{¢ BEFX } H A FEAT 71 2 B4 (11,741) 9,179
Contract liabilities AHEaE (7,460) (4,734)
Cash generated from operations EkEE e SIS 2,669 98,402
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (coONT'D) 28
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 1 April 2022 R-EB-=—FMF—H

Cash flows HeERE

Non-cash movement FREEE

At 31 March 2023 R-E-==H=+—H

Cash flows BERE

Non-cash movement FESEE

At 31 March 2024 R-E-_ME=A=+—H
29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29

As at 31 March 2024, performances bonds of approximately
HK$7,870,000 (2023: approximately HK$23,333,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

HEREER @)

(b)) BETBHELENEEHER

Liabilities from financing activities

METHAE
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
LB HERE mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FiBx FiBx
42,083 49,996 92,079
19,967 (28,701) (8,734)
1,919 16,308 18,227
63,969 37,603 101,572
(8,900) (35,070) (43,970)
3,533 36,291 39,824

58,602 38,824 97,426

HREME

R-ZB-MNE=ZA=+—0 ' A&EECHOEF
BHBAORELH7,870008BT(ZEE==
£ #923,333,000 B 7T) EAEOER -
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with a
related party:

Balances with a related party

Other receivables from
— Negotiator Consultants Limited

(“NCL") (Note) (TNCL) (Bf=E)

As at 31 March 2024, the balances with a related party is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts approximate their fair values (2023: same).

Note:

NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of the
Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in the
normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the Group and
NCL.
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— Negotiator Consultants Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

30 BBEALRS

BRESHBERERARBEZR S, ERI  RA
FER AEBBEEEATETUTRS

BEA L 2R
2024 2023
—E-mE —F==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
306 357

MRIEBE_ME=F=+—H BEALzZ&H
AEEE REREAREREN - REEEH
ARERE(ZE==F : fHE)

BsE -
NCLBAADEBWI A L4  WHBEE  HHE%

ERHERLEFAERRBE VT - HENRERE
EKBRPRAEBENCLERZEE 2GRS -



31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 ARAPBRRRRFEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 FET FBT
Assets BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary M A R 90,918 90,918
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B A T ERIE 42,460 45,322
Other receivables HAth B 30 30
Current income tax recoverable AT Y B A< HA FR 18 %4 116 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 1,147 1,235
_________ 43,753 . 46,587
Total assets BEE 134,671 137,505
Equity R
Equity attributable to equity FOEFEERLER
holders of the Company
Share capital BR A 71,884 71,884
Reserves & (a) 60,811 63,253
Total equity EEEE 132,695 135,137
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H AR 1,976 2,345
Current income tax liabilities ISR A& - 23
___________ 1976 . ..2,368
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 134,671 137,505
The statement of financial position of the Company was RARBBRARERESEN-_S-WEAX
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2024 and A-TMBE#E  AHTIESRKERESE -
were signed on its behalf.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
i = i 37 =
Director Director
EE EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&

B A5 SR AR B &

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 RATMBMRRARRZERE @
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)
Note: MEE
(@  Reserve movement of the Company (@ ELDERELE
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
B 135518 REBEF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiERT FET FET
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—_FmMA—AH 1,201 57,639 58,840
Profit for the year FEHF - 836 836
Dividends (Note 14(a)) B2 (M 14@) - (6,006) (6,006)
Right issue 1HER 9,583 - 9,583
At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=F=H=+—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
At 1 April 2023 RIZE-=FMA—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
Profit for the year FEEEF - 1,152 1,152
Dividends (Note 14(a)) B2 (MEE14(a) - (3,594) (3,594)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZB-WE=A=+—H 10,784 50,027 60,811

1 88 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023/24



32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEEARSTHBERME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

32.1 Principles of consolidation 321 HERE
Subsidiaries HEBAF
Subsidiaries are all entity (including structured entities) MEARRRNEEYHBEEESE R
over which the Group has control. The Group controls FER(BREBER) - EXEEER
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, SHBRCEBMARIERZAETE
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and Bl RAERIEBHEREREIM
has the ability to affect those returns through its power FEZELE  ARENAZEFERE-
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from MEAREREFHEEEEAREERS
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. HEEAR YEKLZEHEATER
They are deconsolidated from the date that control BARRe
ceases.
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised SERRRABZRS EHREEAD
gains on transactions between group companies are AR S 2 REBR W T UL HE - K&
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. BEBRTTUHE NEFE U
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed BLARZETHERFHAR  UERE
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies AEERAK 2R - -

adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL HitBEERSTHRREE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32

32.2 Separate financial statements 322 BIYYMBHHRE

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

32.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.4 Foreign currency translation

(@

b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

32

HBEEXSTHERE @)

32.4 HhEEBmE

(@ MERZIEH
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BN EREEMEETEEAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEARSEHBRBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d) 32.4 SNEBRE (E)

() Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

32.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other assets that are subject to amortisation are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEAREHBRBE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.6 Offsetting financial instruments 32.6 HEEMTA

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

32.7 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other (losses)/gains, net”.

32.8 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

32.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

32.7

32.8

32.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.10 Trade and other payables

321

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

32.12 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.13 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

32 HttBEEXRSHTHERE @)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B8Rk Mz

32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL 32 HBEEARSEHBRBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.14 Provisions 3214 1815

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

32.15 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

32.16 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with
all attached conditions.

32.17 Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective interest
method to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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32 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conT'D)

32.18 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

32 HttBEEXRSHTHERE @)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 have

ES
RAREE
FEAL &R

HEEREE
HEE
meE

been prepared on a consolidated basis.
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LFPBERR

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNgE ZEZ= B B CZEZEHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR FTiERT FTET T
8,543 14,073 11,894 10,769 11,326
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECmFE —EBC= TR B CEIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FiERT TR FBT FExT
711,095 740,573 702,224 702,678 678,621
(215,602) (243,858) (231,703) (241,446) (228,444)
495,493 496,715 470,521 461,232 450,177
FEEBEE-_ZE-TF 2R -F T 2F
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